
April 6, 2017

Agenda for Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Directors of the Palmdale Water District 

to be held at the District’s office at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale 

Wednesday, April 12, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

NOTES: To comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act, to participate in any Board meeting please 
contact Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 at least 48 hours prior to a Board meeting to inform us of your 
needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible. 

Additionally, an interpreter will be made available to assist the public in making comments under Agenda 
Item No. 4 and any action items where public input is offered during the meeting if requested at least 48 
hours before the meeting.  Please call Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 with your request. (PWD Rules 
and Regulations Section 4.03.1 (c) )  

Adicionalmente, un intérprete estará disponible para ayudar al público a hacer comentarios bajo la 
sección No. 4 en la agenda y cualquier elemento de acción donde se ofrece comentarios al público durante 
la reunión, siempre y cuando se solicite con 48 horas de anticipación de la junta directiva. Por favor de llamar 
Dawn Deans al 661-947-4111 x1003 con su solicitud. (PWD reglas y reglamentos sección 4.03.1 (c) ) 

Agenda item materials, as well as materials related to agenda items submitted after distribution of the agenda 
packets, are available for public review at the District’s office located at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale 
(Government Code Section 54957.5). Please call Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 for public review of 
materials. 

PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES:  The prescribed time limit per speaker is three-minutes. 
Please refrain from public displays or outbursts such as unsolicited applause, comments, or cheering.  
Any disruptive activities that substantially interfere with the ability of the District to carry out its 
meeting will not be permitted and offenders will be requested to leave the meeting. (PWD Rules and 
Regulations, Appendix DD, Sec. IV.A.) 

Each item on the agenda shall be deemed to include any appropriate motion, resolution, or ordinance to take 
action on any item. 

1) Pledge of Allegiance/Moment of Silence.

2) Roll Call.

3) Adoption of Agenda.

4) Public comments for non-agenda items.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT -2-           April 6, 2017 

5) Presentations:

5.1) Oroville Dam and Flood Management. (Deputy Water & Energy Resources Director
Thompson II) 

6) Action Items - Consent Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on
any action item on the Consent Calendar as the Consent Calendar is considered
collectively by the Board of Directors prior to action being taken.)

6.1) Approval of minutes of regular meeting held March 22, 2017.

6.2) Payment of bills for April 12, 2017.

6.3) Approve absence of Director Estes from March 22, 2017 Board meeting due to
family obligation. (General Manager LaMoreaux) 

7) Action Items - Action Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on any
action item as each item is considered by the Board of Directors prior to action being
taken.)

7.1) Consideration and possible action on defunding the vacant Senior Service Worker
position and funding the Engineering Technician I position. (Human Resources 
Director Emery/Personnel Committee) 

7.2) Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 17-13 being a Resolution of 
the Board of Directors of the Palmdale Water District in Support of the 
Association of California Water Agencies’ Policy Statement on Bay-Delta Flow 
Requirements. (Deputy Water & Energy Resources Director Thompson II) 

7.3) Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 17-14 being a Resolution of 
the Board of Directors of the Palmdale Water District Requiring that Board 
Members be Elected by Division Starting in November of 2018. (President 
Alvarado/Director Mac Laren) 

7.4) Consideration and possible action on authorization of the following conferences, 
seminars, and training sessions for Board and staff attendance within budget 
amounts previously approved in the 2017 Budget:  

a) P3 Water Summit to be held May 4 – 5, 2017 in San Diego.

b) ESRI User Conference to be held July 10 – 14, 2017 in San Diego.

c) 11th IWA International Conference on Water Reclamation and Reuse to be
held July 23 – 27, 2017 in Long Beach.

8) Information Items:

8.1) Reports of Directors:

a) Meetings/General Report.

b) Standing Committee/Assignment Reports (Chair):

1) Facilities Committee

2) Personnel Committee



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT                     -3-                                         April 6, 2017 
 

 
8.2) Report of General Manager. 

 8.3) Report of General Counsel. 

9) Public comments on closed session agenda matters. 

10) Break prior to closed session. 

11) Closed session under: 

11.1) Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation: A closed session will be 
held, pursuant to Government Code §54956.9 (d)(1), to confer with Special 
Litigation Counsel regarding existing litigation to which the District is a party.  
The title of such litigation is as follows: Antelope Valley Ground Water Cases. 

12) Public report of any action taken in closed session. 

13) Board members' requests for future agenda items. 

14) Adjournment. 
 

 
_________________________________  
DENNIS D. LaMOREAUX,  
General Manager 
 
DDL/dd 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Cubic feet per second (cfs)

180,000

160,000

140,000

120,000

100,000

80,000

60,000

40,000

20,000

    0

I N F L O W S

L A K E   L E V E L

O U T F L O W S

Flood Control 
Spillway 

outflows raised 
to 100,000 cfs to 

ease pressure 
on Emergency 

Spillway

Flood Control 
Spillway 

inspection

➊ February 7: As water releases from the flood 
control spillway ramp up to 54,500 cubic feet per 
second (cfs), in anticipation of inflows expected 
from rainfall, DWR employees notice an unusual 
flow pattern. Spillway flows stop for investigation. 
Engineers find large area of concrete erosion.

➋ February 8: DWR begins ongoing consultation with 
FERC and other dam safety agencies. DWR runs test 
flows down the damaged spillway, monitoring further 
erosion, and prepares for possible use of emergency 
spillway. 24/7 emergency interagency operations 
centers activate to study and implement response 
to flood control spillway and related structures, with 
careful study of weather forecasts.

➌ February 11: Inflow to Lake Oroville brings lake 
level above 901 feet. This engages the emergency 
spillway for the first time in the history of the facility. 

➍ February 12: Anticipated erosion begins to progress 
faster than expected at the base of the emergency 
spillway. The Butte County Sheriff’s Office issues 
mandatory evacuation orders for the Oroville area. To 
ease pressure on the emergency spillway, the flood 
control spillway outflow is increased to 100,000 cfs. 
After several hours, inflows decrease and overflow 
stops at the emergency spillway. Erosion to the 
emergency spillway hillside is assessed. 

➎ February 13: DWR crews begin working around the 
clock to repair the emergency spillway. Evacuation 
orders remain in effect. 

➏ February 14: As the lake level continues to drop, 
the mandatory evacuation order is modified to an 
evacuation warning. Crews continue working around 
the clock to repair the emergency spillway.  
An elevation of 850’ is targeted for lake level. 

➐ February 16: Flood control spillway flows are 
reduced below 100,000 cfs to facilitate the clearing of 
debris from below the spillway. Lake levels continue 
to drop. Construction to armor the emergency 
spillway continues. 

➑ February 18: Lake level down to 854 feet. Flood 
control spillway flows are reduced to 55,000 cfs.  
Barge construction begins in order to remove debris 
from the diversion pool beneath the spillway.

➒ February 20: Lake Oroville elevation reaches 
848.95 feet at 11 a.m. Repairs and preparations 
continue around the clock.
Cooperating Agencies: California Department of 
Water Resources, Butte County Sheriff, CAL FIRE, 
Oroville Police Department, Butte County OES, 
Oroville Fire Department, Butte County Public Works, 
Oroville Hospital, Caltrans, California Highway Patrol, 
California State Parks, California Conservation Corps, 
California National Guard, California Department of 
Fish and Wildlife, PG&E, Red Cross, Bureau of Indian 
Affairs, CAL OES, USACE, FERC, FEMA
For more imagery, see DWR Pixel Library

Lake Oroville Spillway Incident: Timeline of Major Events February 4-25 Oroville Spillway Public Info Line: (530) 538-7826

water.ca.gov
cdec.water.ca.gov/ 

reservoir.html
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

February

➋

➊

➌

➍ ➎

➏

➐ ➑

➒

➍

➏

➐

➌

➐

➑

➑

➒

➍

➊

➋

Source: CDEC

Lake level, in feet
900

880

860

840

850’ elevation

Mandatory 
evacuation 

order is 
issued

02/12/2017: 03:00 am 902.59’

Inflows to Lake Oroville reach 
190,435 cfs, significantly 
higher than forecasted

February
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

Between 
February 6-10, 

12.8 inches of rain 
fall in the Feather 

River Basin

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.1

http://water.ca.gov/
http://water.ca.gov/
http://water.ca.gov/
http://water.ca.gov/
https://www.buttecounty.net/sheriffcoroner/Home.aspx
https://www.buttecounty.net/sheriffcoroner/Home.aspx
http://www.fire.ca.gov/
http://www.fire.ca.gov/
http://www.cityoforoville.org/services/police-department/police-department-adminstration-and-operations
http://www.cityoforoville.org/services/police-department/police-department-adminstration-and-operations
http://www.buttecounty.net/oem/Home.aspx
http://www.buttecounty.net/oem/Home.aspx
http://www.cityoforoville.org/services/fire-department
http://www.cityoforoville.org/services/fire-department
http://www.buttecounty.net/publicworks/Home.aspx
http://www.buttecounty.net/publicworks/Home.aspx
http://www.orovillehospital.com/
http://www.orovillehospital.com/
http://www.dot.ca.gov/
http://www.dot.ca.gov/
https://www.chp.ca.gov/
https://www.chp.ca.gov/
https://www.parks.ca.gov/
https://www.parks.ca.gov/
http://www.ccc.ca.gov/Pages/default.aspx
http://www.ccc.ca.gov/Pages/default.aspx
http://www.calguard.ca.gov/
http://www.calguard.ca.gov/
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/
https://www.pge.com/
https://www.pge.com/
http://www.redcross.org/local/california/gold-country/local-chapters
http://www.redcross.org/local/california/gold-country/local-chapters
https://www.bia.gov/
https://www.bia.gov/
https://www.bia.gov/
https://www.bia.gov/
http://www.caloes.ca.gov/
http://www.caloes.ca.gov/
http://www.usace.army.mil/
http://www.usace.army.mil/
https://www.ferc.gov/
https://www.ferc.gov/
https://www.fema.gov/
https://www.fema.gov/
http://pixel-ca-dwr.photoshelter.com/index
http://pixel-ca-dwr.photoshelter.com/index
http://water.ca.gov
http://water.ca.gov
http://water.ca.gov
http://water.ca.gov
https://cdec.water.ca.gov/reservoir.html
https://cdec.water.ca.gov/reservoir.html
https://cdec.water.ca.gov/reservoir.html
https://cdec.water.ca.gov/reservoir.html
https://cdec.water.ca.gov/reservoir.html
https://cdec.water.ca.gov/reservoir.html


Oroville Dam 
Upper Overlook 
(Staging Area)

O r o v i l l e   D a m

L a k e  O r o v i l l e

Flood Control Spillway  
Control Structure ➌

Emergency SpillwaySpillway Boat Ramp 
Parking Lot

Hyatt 
Powerplant

Bidwell Bar Bridge

Hwy 162

K e l l y  R i d g e  

R e c r e a t i o n  A r e a

P o t t e r s  R a v i n e 

R e c r e a t i o n  A r e a

F o r e m a n  C r e e k 

R e c r e a t i o n  A r e a

B a l d  R o c k

Oroville Dam Crest Road

Canyon 
Drive

Royal 
Oaks 
 Drive

Oro Powerhouse Road

Diversion 
Pool 

Tailrace
➏

Oroville Dam Blvd E

Oroville Dam Blvd E

Flood Control 
Spillway  

Damage Zone
➍

Emergency 
Spillway 

Discharge 
Zone
➋

Transmission 
Lines

 Lake Oroville Spillway Repairs: General Overview  February 21, 2017 

Emergency Spillway 
Work Area ➊ DWR 
continues to reinforce 
the Emergency 
Spillway and re-
establish access roads, 
with construction 
crews working around 
the clock.

Emergency Spillway 
Discharge Zone ➋ This 
area has been inspected 
and continues to be 
monitored for any 
erosion. Transmission 
lines have been 
inspected and function 
normally.

Thermalito 
Diversion Pool to 
Hyatt Powerplant 
➎ Erosion debris
to be removed
in order to begin
operations at Hyatt
Powerplant as soon
as practical.

Flood Control 
Spillway Control 
Structure ➌ 
Monitoring 
of structure 
continues. 
Operations are 
normal.

Flood Control Spillway 
Damage Zone ➍ 
Assessment of structure 
continues as flows 
are reduced. Plans to 
maintain and repair 
the structure will be 
presented as they 
develop.

Monitoring Truck 
Traffic on Oroville 
Dam Roads: Effects 
of vehicle travel 
on Oroville Dam 
Road and Oro 
Powerhouse Road 
are being closely 
monitored.

Hyatt Powerplant/
Diversion Pool Tailrace ➏ 
Reducing the water surface 
elevation of the tailrace 
will be accomplished 
through the downstream 
debris removal process, 
thus allowing for Hyatt 
Powerplant startup.

Trails and Boat Launch Ramps: 
The Brad Freeman and Dan 
Beebe Trails in the area around 
the Diversion Pool have been 
closed. The Spillway Boat Ramp 
will remain closed until further 
notice. For current information 
on launch ramps, visit the 
State Parks website.

Road Blocks/Security 
Checkpoints: Oroville 
Dam East at Glen 
Drive; Oroville Dam 
East at Canyon Drive; 
Dam Crest Road 
at Spillway Access 
Road; Canyon Drive 
at Royal Oaks Drive.

water.ca.gov
https://cdec.water.ca.gov/ 

reservoir.html

Portion 
of image 
derived 

from 
GoogleEarth  

source 

D R A F T

Flood 
Control 
Spillway

Oroville Spillway Public Info Line: (530) 538-7826

Cooperating Agencies: Butte County Sheriff, Oroville Police Department, Butte County OES, Oroville Fire Department, Butte County Public Works, Oroville Hospital, California Highway Patrol, California State Parks, PG&E, CAL FIRE, Caltrans, Red Cross, 
California Conservation Corps, California National Guard, California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Bureau of Indian Affairs, CAL OES, USACE, FERC, FEMA For more imagery see DWR Pixel

Thermalito Diversion Pool

Emergency 
Spillway 

Work Area 
➊

➎
➎

http://www.parks.ca.gov/?page_id=462
http://water.ca.gov
http://water.ca.gov
https://cdec.water.ca.gov/reservoir.html
https://cdec.water.ca.gov/reservoir.html
https://www.buttecounty.net/sheriffcoroner/Home.aspx
http://www.cityoforoville.org/services/police-department/police-department-adminstration-and-operations
http://www.buttecounty.net/oem/Home.aspx
http://www.cityoforoville.org/services/fire-department
http://www.buttecounty.net/publicworks/Home.aspx
http://www.orovillehospital.com/
https://www.chp.ca.gov/
https://www.parks.ca.gov/
https://www.pge.com/
http://www.fire.ca.gov/
http://www.dot.ca.gov/
http://www.redcross.org/local/california/gold-country/local-chapters
http://www.ccc.ca.gov/Pages/default.aspx
http://www.calguard.ca.gov/
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/
https://www.bia.gov/
http://www.caloes.ca.gov/
http://www.usace.army.mil/
https://www.ferc.gov/
https://www.fema.gov/
http://pixel-ca-dwr.photoshelter.com/index


P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: April 5, 2017    April 12, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting

FROM: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.3 – APPROVE ABSENCE OF DIRECTOR ESTES 
FROM MARCH 22, 2017 BOARD MEETING DUE TO FAMILY 
OBLIGATION. 

Director Estes was absent from the March 22, 2017 Regular Board Meeting. 
Agenda Item No. 6.3 has been placed on the Consent Calendar to excuse this absence 
pursuant to Section 4.07.2 of the District’s Rules and Regulations which states, “The 
Board shall excuse absences by approving such absences pursuant to the Consent 
Calendar at the next regular Board meeting.”  

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.3



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M   

DATE: April 5, 2017 April 12, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Jennifer Emery, Human Resources Director 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON DEFUNDING THE 
VACANT SENIOR SERVICE WORKER POSITION AND FUNDING 
THE ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN I POSITION. (HUMAN 
RESOURCES DIRECTOR EMERY/PERSONNEL COMMITTEE) 

Recommendation: 

Staff and the Personnel Committee recommend that the Board approve the filling of an 
Engineering Technician I position. 

Alternative Options: 

The alternative is to maintain status quo. 

Background: 

The District has a funded position for a Senior Service Worker which is currently vacant. 
After assessing the District’s needs, we find that the District has a greater need for an 
Engineering Technician I in our Engineering Department. We would like to defund the 
Senior Service Worker position and fund the Engineering Technician 1 position. This 
will allow us to prepare for our upcoming projects such as the recharge project and the 
Littlerock Dam project while also making sure that we are sufficiently preparing for 
upcoming retirements within the Engineering Department. The Engineering Technician 1 
position is a position that has been presented as a “future position” during previous 
budget discussions. The Senior Service Worker position was at Salary Range 27, and the 
Engineering Technician 1 position will be at Salary Range 24. 

Strategic Plan Initiative 

This work is part of Strategic Initiative No. 2: Organizational Excellence 

Budget: 

Reduces cost to budget. 

Supporting Documents: 

 District Position History Spreadsheet
 Engineering Technician 1 Salary Survey (pre-COLA)
 Organization Chart

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1



POSITION Mar‐17

Budget 

2017

Budget 

2016

Budget 

2015

Budget 

2014

Budget 

2013

Budget 

2012

Budget 

2011

ADMINISTRATION:

General Manager/CEO 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Assistant General Manager/COO 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Water & Energy Resources Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Deputy Water & Energy Resources Manager 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0

Public Affairs and Sustainability Director 1 1 0.5 0 0 0 0 0

Executive Assistant 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Administrative Assistant 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1

Management Analyst 2 2 1 1 0 0 0 0

SUBTOTAL: 10 10 7.5 7 5 5 5 5

ENGINEERING:

Engineering/Grant Manager 1 1 1 1 0 1 1 1

Project Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Engineering Analyst 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Construction Inspector 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Cross Connection Control Specialist 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

G.I.S. Coordinator 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0

Engineering Technician 2 1 1 3 3 3 3 3

Engineering Design Technician 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0

SUBTOTAL: 11 10 9 9 8 9 9 9

FACILITIES:

Facilities Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Construction Supervisor 1 1 1 0 0 0 1 1

Senior Service Worker 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Service Workers 9 9 10 11 11 11 11 11

Warehouse Technician 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Operations Technician ‐ Fleet Lead 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Operations Technician ‐ Mechanical Lead 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Operations Technician 6 6 0 0 0 0 0 0

Equipment Mechanic Supervisor 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1

Equipment Mechanic 0 0 4 4 4 4 4 3

Maintenance Worker 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0

Systems Supervisor 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0

Pump Operator 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0

Electrical/Instrumentation Technician ‐ Lead 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Electrician 1 1 2 2 0 0 0 0

Electronic Technician 2 2 2 2 0 0 0 0

SUBTOTAL: 28 29 30 29 22 22 23 22

OPERATIONS:

Operations Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Treatment Plant Supervisor 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1

Plant Operators 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

Senior Maintenance Mechanic 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1

Palmdale Water District
Departmental Staffing Budget



Maintenance Mechanic 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1

Administrative Technician 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1

Operations Technician 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0

Water Quality / Regulatory Affairs Supervisor 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Laboratory Analyst 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Systems Supervisor 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1

Pump Operator 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 2

Electrician 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 2

Electronic Technician 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 2

SUBTOTAL: 10 10 13 13 21 21 21 21

FINANCE:

Finance Manager/CFO 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Accounting Supervisor 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Accounting Technician 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 1

Accounting Assistant 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1

Customer Finance Supervisor 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Assistant Customer Service Supervisor 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1

Customer Account Technician 3 3 3 0 0 0 0 0

Customer Service Representative 0 0 0 9 9 9 9 9

Part time Customer Service Representative 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2

Field Service Supervisor 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1

Senior Field Service Technician 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1

Field Service Technician 0 0 0 7 7 7 6 6

SUBTOTAL: 7 7 7 22 23 23 25 25

WATER CONSERVATION:

Public Information Officer/Conservation Director 0 0 0.5 1 1 1 1 1

Water Conservation Supervisor 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1

Water Conservation Aide 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Field Customer Care Representative (Water Cons) 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

SUBTOTAL 2 2 1.5 2 3 3 3 3

HUMAN RESOURCES:

Human Resources Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

SUBTOTAL: 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY:

Information Technology Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Information Technology Technician 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1

Information Technology Help Desk Technician 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

SUBTOTAL: 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

CUSTOMER CARE:

Customer Care Supervisor 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Customer Care Representative 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0

Customer Care Representative 6 6 7 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Field Customer Care Representative 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0

Field Customer Care Representative 4 4 6 0 0 0 0 0

SUBTOTAL: 13 13 15 0 0 0 0 0

DISTRICT TOTAL: 84 84 86 85 85 86 89 88



16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35

3854.33 4047.04 4249.4 4461.87 4684.96 4919.21 5165.17 5423.43 5694.6 5979.33 6278.29 6592.21 6921.82 7267.91 7631.31 8012.87 8413.52 8834.19 9275.9 9739.7

Engineering Tech I 24 Engineering Technician I $4719.61 ‐ $5736.71

Engineering Technician I $4126 ‐ $5363 5,363.00$    

No Equivalent Position

Engineering Technician I $4492.80 ‐ $5749.47 5,749.47$    

Engineering and Right of Way Coordinator $4272.67 ‐ $5978.27 5,978.27$    

Engineering Technician I $4720.33 ‐ $6221.42 6,221.42$    

Engineering Technician I $4525 ‐ $5500 5,500.00$    

Engineering Technician I $4417 ‐ $5385 5,385.00$    

Engineering Technician I $4392.27 ‐ $5470.40 5,470.40$    

No Equivalent Position

Engineering Technician I $4603.56 ‐ $5606.64 5,606.64$    

Engineering Tech I $3954 ‐ $6172 6,172.00$    

Engineering Tech I $4042.13 ‐ $6290.27 6,290.27$    

57,736.47$   5,773.65$     Salary Range 24



M.W.  4/6/17

CUSTOMER CARE
SUPERVISOR

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT ORGANIZATIONAL  STRUCTURE

ROBERT E. ALVARADO

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

JOE ESTES MARCO HENRIQUEZ KATHY MAC LAREN VINCENT DINO

DIVISION 1 DIVISION 2 DIVISION 3 DIVISION 4 DIVISION 5

ENGINEERING 
TECHNICIAN I/II

LAB ANALYST I/II

G.I.S.
COORDINATOR

CROSS CONNECTION
TECHNICIAN

WATER QUALITY/
REGULATORY AFFAIRS

SUPERVISOR

LAB ANALYST I/II

ENGINEERING / GRANT MANAGER

HUMAN RESOURCES 
DIRECTOR

WATER & ENERGY
RESOURCES DIRECTOR

FACILITIES MANAGER OPERATIONS MANAGER 

PROJECT MANAGER

CUST. CARE REP. I/II

CUSTOMER ACCOUNT

PUBLIC AFFAIRS
SPECIALIST 

ACCOUNTING
SUPERVISOR

EXECUTIVE
ASSISTANT 

CUSTOMER FINANCE
SUPERVISOR

SENIOR 
CUSTOMER
CARE REP.

ADMINISTRATIVE
ASSISTANT 

ASSISTANT GENERAL
MANAGER / COO  

FINANCE MANAGER / CFO

MANAGEMENT
ANALYSTINFORMATION TECHNOLOGY MANAGER

ENGINEERING
ANALYST

PURCHASING
TECHNICIAN

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

SERVICE WORKER
III - LEAD

PLANT OPERATOR I/II

ACCOUNTING
TECHNICIAN

PUBLIC AFFAIRS AND 
SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTOR

ELECTRONIC
TECHNICIAN I/II

ELECTRICIAN I/II  

FIELD CUSTOMER 

OPERATIONS
TECH. I/II

SERVICE WORKER I/II

OP. TECH. III
MECH. LEAD

IT - NETWORK ADMINISTRATOR

MANAGEMENT
ANALYST

CONSTRUCTION
INSPECTOR I/II

ENGINEERING DESIGN
TECHNICIAN I/II

PLANT OPERATOR III -  

AUDITORATTORNEY

GENERAL MANAGER / CEO

VOTERS

DEPUTY WATER & ENERGY
RESOURCES DIRECTOR

ENGINEERING 
TECHNICIAN I/II

SENIOR FIELD 
CUSTOMER
CARE REP.

CUSTOMER CARE
SUPERVISOR

CONSTRUCTION
SUPERVISOR

OPERATIONS
TECH. I/II

OP. TECH. III
FLEET LEAD

ELECTRICAL/
INSTRUMENTATION

TECH. III LEAD

MAINTENANCE
WORKER I

WATER CONSERVATION 

TECHNICIAN

 IT - HELP DESK TECHNICIAN

RISK MANAGER

CARE REP. II

FIELD CUSTOMER 
CARE REP. I

LEAD 

WATER CONSERVATION

FIELD CUSTOMER 

AIDE

CARE REP. II

SPECIALIST

PROPOSED

FULL-TIME FUNDED POSITIONS (WITH D.M.):     84

LEGEND
ASSUMES THE ROLE OF
GENERAL MANAGER IN
HIS/HER ABSENCE

*

INTERN FUNDED POSITIONS: 1

TOTAL POSITIONS: 90

CONCEPTUAL FUTURE POSITIONS: 4

UNFUNDED POSITIONS: 1

LAB INTERN

CUSTOMER ACCOUNT
TECHNICIAN

CUSTOMER ACCOUNT
TECHNICIAN

CUST. CARE REP. I/II

CUST. CARE REP. I/II

CUST. CARE REP. I/II

CUST. CARE REP. I/II

CUST. CARE REP. I/II FIELD CUSTOMER 
CARE REP. I

FIELD CUSTOMER 
CARE REP. I

PLANT OPERATOR I/II

PLANT OPERATOR I/II

PLANT OPERATOR I/II

PLANT OPERATOR I/II

LAB ANALYST I/II

CONSTRUCTION
INSPECTOR I/II

CONSTRUCTION
INSPECTOR I/II

OPERATIONS
TECH. I/II

OPERATIONS
TECH. I/II

OPERATIONS
TECH. I/II

PURCHASING
TECHNICIAN

SERVICE WORKER
III - LEAD

SERVICE WORKER
III - LEAD

SERVICE WORKER I/II

SERVICE WORKER I/II

SERVICE WORKER I/II

SERVICE WORKER I/II

SERVICE WORKER I/II

SERVICE WORKER I/II

SERVICE WORKER I/II

SERVICE WORKER I/II

OPERATIONS
TECH. I/II

ELECTRONIC
TECHNICIAN I/II



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: April 5, 2017 April 12, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS        Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Peter K. Thompson II, Deputy Water and Energy Resources Director 

VIA: Mr. Jon Pernula, Water and Energy Resources Director 
Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
ON RESOLUTION NO. 17-13 BEING A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS OF THE PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT IN 
SUPPORT OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER 
AGENCIES’ POLICY STATEMENT ON BAY-DELTA FLOW 
REQUIREMENTS. (DEPUTY WATER & ENERGY RESOURCES 
DIRECTOR THOMPSON II) 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends the Board adopt Resolution No. 17-13 being a Resolution of the Board 
of Directors of the Palmdale Water District in Support of the Association of California 
Water Agencies (ACWA) Policy Statement on Bay-Delta Flow Requirements. 

Background: 

On September 15, 2016, the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) staff 
released a draft proposal to update the Bay Delta Plan by changing flow objectives for 
tributaries in the southern Delta.  These flow objectives would set target percentages of 
unimpaired flow and increase water releases through the southern Delta.  Unimpaired 
flow is defined as “the flow that would occur if all runoff from the watershed remained in 
the river, without storage in reservoirs or diversions, such as irrigation, power generation, 
or water supply.” 

Water flowing into and through the Delta supports a wide variety of beneficial uses 
including: agriculture, municipal, domestic and industrial supply; power generation; 
recreation; aesthetic enjoyment; navigation; and preservation of fish, wildlife and other 
aquatic resources.  It is the responsibility of the SWRCB to update the Bay Delta Plan in 
a manner that ensures reasonable protection for all of these resources.   

ACWA and its member agencies believe that the SWRCB staff proposal is an unbalanced 
and blunt approach to a complex problem.  Its potential negative impacts to water supply 
reliability have not been given consideration and the simplistic increased flow approach 
fails to utilize both the advances in ecological science and the benefits of many 
negotiated cooperative agreements between beneficial users.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2



2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
VIA:  Mr. Jon Pernula, Water and Energy Resources Director 

Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager April 5, 2017 

ACWA has developed a policy statement on behalf of its member agencies that addresses 
these concerns and provides a road map to a more comprehensive and collaborative 
approach to updating the Bay-Delta Plan.  In brief, the proposal calls for the SWRCB to 
continue to support collaborative and comprehensive solutions for water supply and eco-
system management, apply the best available science in guiding decisions and standards, 
continue to support functional customized flows in the Delta to support ecological goals, 
consider the economic impacts of all beneficial uses prior to setting standards, remain 
consistent with State policy of pursuing water supply reliability and enhanced eco-
systems as co-equal goals and leadership in pursuing engaged and negotiated solutions 
that provide reasonable protection to all beneficial uses of the State’s precious water 
resource. 

In order to protect the interest of our customers and help guide informed State policy, it is 
staff’s recommendation that the Board adopt Resolution 17-13 supporting the ACWA 
Policy on Bay-Delta Flow Requirements.   

Strategic Plan Initiative: 

This work is part of Strategic Initiative No. 1 – Water Resource Reliability 

Budget: 

No current budget impact.  If the SWRCB staff proposal is approved and water reliability 
was decreased, then cost of procuring water deliveries would increase. 

Supporting Documents: 

• Resolution No. 17-13

• SWRCB Fact Sheet on Draft Flow Requirements

• SWRCB Summary of Proposed Changes to Bay-Delta Water Quality
Control Plan

• ACWA Policy Statement on Bay-Delta Flow Requirements



RESOLUTION NO. 17-13 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
IN SUPPORT OF THE ASSOCIATION  OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES'  

POLICY STATEMENT ON BAY-DELTA FLOW REQUIREMENTS 

WHEREAS, California is facing a defining moment in water policy that will be substantially 
impacted by the State Water Resources Control Board's approach to water quality objectives under the 
Water Quality Control Plan for the San Francisco Bay/Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta; and 

WHEREAS, the State Water Board has the responsibility for updating the Bay-Delta Plan in a 
manner that establishes water quality objectives that ensure the reasonable protection of all beneficial 
uses of water in a way that is consistent with the coequals goals of improving water supply reliability and 
protecting, restoring and enhancing the Delta ecosystem and with respect to the commitments made in 
the California Water Action Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the State Water Board staff's current proposal, which focuses singularly on an 
"unimpaired flow" approach, is irreconcilable with a policy of coequal goals of improving both water 
supply reliability and ecosystem health; it is also inconsistent with the broader water policy objectives of 
the Brown Administration; and 

WHEREAS, the ACWA Board of Directors has unanimously adopted a strong policy statement 
calling for a better approach that can more effectively achieve ecological objectives while maintaining 
water supply reliability. The statement calls on the State Water Board to set aside its "unimpaired flow" 
approach and heed Gov. Jerry Brown's call for negotiated agreements, which have been successful on 
many rivers and tributaries in California; and 

WHEREAS, the ACWA statement notes that to be successful, the state's flow policy must be 
consistent with the principles of collaboration, comprehensive solutions, science, functional flows, 
economic considerations, consistency with state policy, and leadership; and 

WHEREAS, California's local urban and agricultural water managers are united in their vision for 
a future that includes a vibrant California economy, as well as healthy ecosystems and fish populations, 
and believe that vision is best achieved through comprehensive, collaborative approaches; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Palmdale Water 
District herby supports ACWA's Policy Statement on Bay-Delta Flows and encourages the State Water 
Resources Control Board to embrace the approach articulated in ACWA's policy statement. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
Palmdale Water District held on April 12, 2017. 

Robert Alvarado, President  Joe Estes, Secretary 
Palmdale Water District Palmdale Water District 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Eric Dunn, General Counsel 



Revised Draft Substitute Environmental Document 

for Flow Objectives on the Lower San Joaquin River 

and Salinity Objectives for the Southern Delta 

Overview 

The San Francisco Bay/Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Estuary (Bay-Delta) includes the
Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta, Suisun Marsh, and San Francisco Bay.  California’s two

major rivers, the Sacramento and the San Joaquin, converge in the Delta and meet incoming
seawater from the Pacific Ocean in San Francisco Bay.  Water diversions from the Delta
supply a portion of the drinking water to more than two thirds of Californians and for millions
of acres of farmland.

On Sept.15, 2016, the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) staff
released a draft proposal to update water quality requirements for salinity in the southern
Delta and water flows in major tributaries to the San Joaquin River (the Stanislaus,
Tuolumne, and Merced Rivers), which drains into the southern Delta.  The refined salinity
requirements reflect updated scientific information about salt levels that reasonably protect
farming in the southern Delta.  The new flow requirements for the San Joaquin River’s major 

tributaries recognize the vital role upstream water flows provide for habitat and migratory
signals for native fish species.  In summary, the draft proposes increasing flows for fish and
wildlife and adjusts the salinity requirements to a slightly higher level to reflect updated
scientific knowledge.

State Water Board Responsibility 

The State Water Board holds dual responsibilities of allocating surface water rights and
protecting water quality.  The State Water Board allocates water through an administrative
system that is intended to maximize the beneficial uses of water while protecting the public
trust, serving the public interest, and preventing the waste and unreasonable use or method
of diversion of water.  This requires balancing of all of those interests.

State water quality law requires the adoption of water quality control plans that identify
existing and potential beneficial uses of waters of the state and establish water quality
objectives to protect these uses.  The plans also contain implementation, surveillance and
monitoring elements.



 

 

While most water quality control planning is done by the Regional Water Quality Control 
Boards, the State Water Board has authority to adopt statewide water quality control plans 
and adopts the Water Quality Control Plan the San Francisco Bay/Sacramento-San Joaquin 

Delta Estuary Bay-Delta (Bay-Delta Plan) because of its importance as a major source of 
water supply for the state.  The Bay-Delta Plan protects water quality in the region and 
includes water quality objectives to protect municipal and industrial, agricultural, and fish and 
wildlife beneficial uses. 

The Bay-Delta Plan 

The Bay-Delta Program resides in the State Water Board’s Division of Water Rights because 
of the critical importance of flow objectives in the Bay-Delta Plan.  Among taking other 
actions, the State Water Board may implement the Bay-Delta Plan through water right 
actions. 

Developing the Bay-Delta Plan 

The State Water Board is in the midst of developing and implementing updates to the Bay-
Delta Plan and flow objectives for priority tributaries to the Delta to protect beneficial uses in 
the Bay-Delta Watershed.  For administrative convenience, the various proceedings are 
referred to as phases.  This phase (Phase 1) proposes amendments to the Bay-Delta Plan 
involving the Lower San Joaquin River flow objectives and southern Delta salinity objectives. 

In a separate process, referred to as Phase 2, the State Water Board is reviewing and 
considering updates to other elements of the Bay-Delta Plan, including Delta outflows, 
Sacramento and tributary inflows (other than the San Joaquin River inflows), Suisun Marsh 
salinity, Delta Cross Channel Gate closure, export limits, and reverse flows in Old and 
Middle River.  In Phase 3, the State Water Board will implement changes to the Bay-Delta 
Plan from Phases 1 and 2 through water right actions; in addition, the revised objectives 
may be implemented through water quality actions.  Phase 4 focuses on the development 
and implementation of flows in the Sacramento River Watershed to address tributary-
specific public trust needs, with consideration for other beneficial uses of water, and will be 
integrated with the Phase 2 effort.  A draft scientific basis report for the Phase 2 proceeding 
was released Oct. 14, 2016; draft Phase 2 proposed amendments to the Bay-Delta Plan will 
be released in 2017. 

Phase 1 Substitute Environmental Document 

The State Water Board previously released a Draft Substitute Environmental Document 
(SED) in December 2012 (2012 Draft SED).  This recirculated Draft SED, released on 
September 15, 2016, makes substantial changes to the 2012 Draft SED in consideration of 
the large number of oral and written public comments received concerning that document, 
and in light of additional information, including information learned from the recent drought.  



 

 

Changes were also made in response to the state’s adoption in 2014 of a state policy for 
sustainable groundwater management (Wat. Code, § 113) and passage of the Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) (Wat. Code, §§ 10720 et seq.), which provide a 
roadmap and directive for sustainable local groundwater management. 

Phase 1 Plan Amendments 

In Phase 1, the State Water Board is proposing to update two elements of the 2006 Bay-
Delta Plan: 

 San Joaquin River flow objectives for the protection of fish and wildlife: the flow 
element of the proposed plan update would increase the required flows to be left in 
the rivers and would change the area currently protected by flow requirements by 
adding compliance locations on the Stanislaus, Tuolumne, and Merced Rivers, 
instead of only on the San Joaquin River at Vernalis. 

 Southern Delta salinity objectives for the protection of agriculture: the salinity element 
of this proposal would adjust the salinity requirements to a slightly higher level to 
reflect updated scientific knowledge of salt levels that reasonably protect farming.  
Monitoring and compliance locations would be changed to better reflect overall 
salinity levels and protection of agriculture. 

San Joaquin River Flow Objectives 

 The recirculated Draft SED recommends increasing flow on the San Joaquin River 
and its tributaries to a range of 30 to 50 percent, with a starting point of 40 percent of 
unimpaired flow from February through June.  Unimpaired flow represents the water 
production of a river basin, unaltered by upstream diversions, storage, or by export 
or import of water to or from other watersheds.  Historical median February through 
June flows from 1984–2009 in the Merced, Tuolumne, and Stanislaus Rivers were, 
respectively, 26, 21, and 40 percent of unimpaired flow.  In other words, half of the 
time more than 60 or 70 percent of each river’s flow is diverted out of the river during 
these months. 

 Scientific studies show that flow is a major factor in the survival of fish like salmon 
and that current flows are inadequate to protect many endangered and threatened 
species, as well as species relied upon by the commercial fisheries.  The Draft SED 
recognizes that other factors, like predation and loss of habitat, affect fish 
populations, and those factors are also addressed in the Draft SED. 

 The unimpaired flow requirement is designed to mimic the cues of nature that 
species have evolved to respond to, but is not intended to be a rigid and fixed 
percent of unimpaired flow.  It is intended to provide a quantity of water as a 



 

 

baseline, but the proposal provides for, and encourages, collaboration to use the 
flows as a block of water that can be “shaped” or shifted in time to provide more 

functionally useful flows that provide increased habitat, more optimal temperatures, 
or a migration cue.  This type of targeted effort can provide more timely and efficient 
use of flows than a set regime. 

 The Draft SED recognizes the financial and operational challenges to local economies 
of reduced diversions. The flow requirement considers the needs for fish and wildlife 
along with the needs of agriculture and local economies. 

 Stakeholders are encouraged to work together to reach voluntary agreements that 
could implement Bay‐Delta Plan objectives for fish and wildlife beneficial uses.  
Voluntary actions to implement non-flow measures to improve conditions for fish and 
wildlife may support a change in the flows within the 30 to 50 percent range. 

 The proposal contemplates that the biological goals will be among the tools that 
inform future State Water Board decisions on whether to adjust the unimpaired flow 
percentage within the 30 to 50 percent range.  Put another way, adaptive 
implementation will optimize flows and take into account actual improvements in 
biological conditions that support native fish.  Adaptive implementation of flows will 
also allow a nimble response to changing information and changing conditions while 
minimizing unintended impacts. 

Southern Delta Salinity Objectives 

 The recommended amendment to the southern Delta salinity objective (southern 
Delta salinity proposal) would eliminate the seasonal element of the current 
objective by changing the objective to a higher salinity level (1.0 deciSiemens per 
meter [dS/m] year-round), from the current 0.7 dS/m April through August and 
1.0 dS/m September through March. 

 Analysis of southern Delta water quality and crop salinity requirements shows that 
the existing salinity conditions in the southern Delta are suitable for all crops and 
that the existing April through August salinity objective is actually lower than what is 
needed to reasonably protect agriculture. 

 The United States Bureau of Reclamation will be required to continue to comply with 
the 0.7 dS/m salinity level for the San Joaquin River at Vernalis as a condition of its 
water rights. 



 The revised water quality objectives coupled with the implementation measures
included in the Bay-Delta Plan update would provide the same or better conditions
for agricultural uses in the Delta, as compared to existing conditions through the
continuation, or improvement, of existing management actions, including
maintenance of water levels.

 The proposal includes requirements that the State Water Project and Central
Valley Project address the impacts of their export operations on water levels and
flow conditions that may affect salinity conditions in the southern Delta.

 The southern Delta salinity proposal would also replace the three current fixed points
for monitoring southern Delta salinity compliance, and instead identifies three
extended channel segments for monitoring conditions and measuring compliance.

 Increased February through June flows under the San Joaquin River flow element
would improve salinity conditions in the southern Delta early in the irrigation
season.

Next Steps 

This is a draft staff proposal and SED.  Comments on both the proposed Bay-Delta Plan
amendments and the Draft SED are due by noon on Jan. 17, 2017.  A public hearing will be
held on Nov. 29, 2016 and Jan. 3, 2017 in Sacramento; Dec. 16, 2016 in Stockton; Dec. 19,
2016 in Merced; and Dec. 20, 2016 in Modesto, to receive additional oral comments.

Staff will prepare a draft final SED for consideration by the State Water Board’s members.

The Board members will consider the draft Final SED before approving the project, and the
SED will become final upon project approval.  The Board will consider approving the
proposed Bay-Delta Plan amendments at a public meeting that will be held in 2017.

An expanded summary of the proposed updates to the Bay-Delta Plan is available here.

(This fact sheet was last updated on Oct 18, 2016.)

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water_issues/programs/bay_delta/


Summary of Proposed Updates to the Bay-Delta Water Quality Control Plan 
(September 15, 2016) 

Introduction 
The San Francisco Bay/Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Estuary (Bay-Delta) is a critical crossroads 
in the state’s water supply system as well as an ecosystem in crisis. The Delta, at the confluence 
of the Sacramento and San Joaquin Rivers, was once a vibrant tidal marsh teeming with fish and 
wildlife, including several iconic species, such as Chinook salmon, many of which are 
threatened, endangered, and some of which still support a commercial fishery. Reclamation of 
farmland in the Delta and diversions upstream and through the Delta led to vibrant farming and 
urban development within the Delta and in Central and Southern California. Those factors have 
played a significant role in fish and wildlife species plummeting because of the extent of water 
diverted out of the rivers and Delta.  

Over the past 47 years, since the passage of California’s Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control 
Act (Porter-Cologne Act), and with subsequent passage of the federal Clean Water Act and the 
federal and state endangered species acts, state and federal agencies have taken steps to 
improve conditions for fish and wildlife while protecting other water uses. Yet on balance, 
Californians continue to take more water out of the Delta and its tributaries than the species 
can withstand. 

Many state and federal agencies are working on multiple fronts to protect, restore, and 
enhance the Bay-Delta while balancing those efforts with water supply for farmers and cities 
that rely on water pumped from the Bay-Delta. The State Water Resources Control Board (State 
Water Board) has a unique role with respect to the Bay-Delta because it establishes water right 
and water quality requirements to protect human, fish, and wildlife uses of the Bay-Delta’s 
waters. Evidence amassed over the last 10 years by researchers, the Legislature, the State 
Water Board, and state and federal fisheries agencies shows a crucial need to update these 
requirements for the benefit of people and fish. 

On September 15, 2016, the State Water Board staff released a draft proposal to update water 
quality requirements for salinity in the southern Delta and water flows in major tributaries to 
the San Joaquin River (the Stanislaus, Tuolumne, and Merced Rivers), which drain into the 
southern Delta. The refined salinity requirements reflect updated scientific information about 
salt levels that reasonably protect farming in the southern Delta. The new flow requirements 
for the San Joaquin River’s major tributaries recognize the vital role upstream water flows 
provide for habitat and migratory signals for threatened and endangered salmon and 
steelhead. In sum, the draft proposes increasing flows for fish and wildlife and adjusts the 
salinity requirements to a slightly higher level to reflect updated scientific knowledge. 

While the proposal focuses on the southern Delta and tributaries of the San Joaquin River, the 
effort is one of myriad actions completed and underway related to water quality, habitat 
restoration, and flows in the Bay-Delta.  A draft science report related to the Sacramento River 
and the Delta will follow in a few weeks, with a draft plan to follow next year. 



Summary of Proposed Updates to the Bay-Delta Water Quality Control Plan  
 

2 
 

What is the Bay-Delta? 
The Bay-Delta includes the Sacramento–San Joaquin Delta, Suisun Marsh, and San Francisco 
Bay. California’s two largest rivers, the Sacramento and the San Joaquin, converge in the Delta 
and meet incoming seawater from the Pacific Ocean in San Francisco Bay. The Delta is a 
critically important natural resource for California and the nation. It is both the hub of 
California’s water supply system and the most valuable estuary and wetlands system on the 
west coast, serving cities, farms, fishing communities, boaters, fish, and wildlife.  

Why is the State Water Board Updating the Bay-Delta Water Quality Control Plan Now? 
Under the Porter-Cologne Act, the State Water Board has authority to establish water quality 
requirements to protect beneficial uses of water. The State Water Board is proposing changes 
to water quality requirements related to (1) salinity levels for the protection of farming in the 
southern Delta, and (2) critical flows in the San Joaquin River system to provide habitat for fish 
and wildlife upstream of the Delta. More than ten years ago, the State Water Board identified 
these water quality issues as priority updates in the 2006 Water Quality Control Plan for the 
Bay-Delta (Bay-Delta Plan) in an effort to develop adequate information to protect the 
beneficial uses of the Delta. Failure to address these priorities now could result in more 
draconian actions under the state or federal Endangered Species Act or federal action to 
establish water quality standards for the Bay-Delta. On the other hand, addressing these issues 
now will provide a platform for responding to future droughts, adapting to climate change, and 
improving water resource management.  

Both changes would be incorporated into the Bay-Delta Plan, which establishes water quality 
requirements for the Bay-Delta. The Bay-Delta Plan lays out water quality protections to ensure 
the various water uses – drinking, irrigation, fisheries, and more – are protected. In establishing 
the water quality requirements, the State Water Board must consider all beneficial uses of 
water in determining how to reasonably protect particular uses. Rather than “choose” one 
beneficial use over others, the State Water Board must balance the needs in order to 
“maximize” support all of the uses. 

In the last ten years, the continuing decline of the Bay-Delta ecosystem’s health has reinforced 
the need for action. Several species of fish have been listed as protected species under the 
state or federal Endangered Species Act. Water diversions from the San Joaquin River and its 
tributaries have surpassed the rivers’ ability to support a healthy fishery. The proposed update 
would address factors contributing to the decline of key fishery species, incorporate new 
science in the State Water Board’s planning processes, and provide a framework for accepting 
voluntary agreements with alternative methods for enhancing fish and wildlife in the 
tributaries.  

As part of the 2009 Delta Reform Act, the Legislature directed the State Water Board to develop 
flow criteria for the Delta ecosystem necessary to protect public trust uses. In keeping with the 
narrow focus of the legislation, the State Water Board’s 2010 Delta Flow Criteria Report only 
presents a technical assessment of flow and operational requirements to provide fishery 
protection under existing conditions. The report does not do the analysis to inform the 



Summary of Proposed Updates to the Bay-Delta Water Quality Control Plan  
 

3 
 

consideration of competing uses of water that is required by the California Water Code. The 
Delta Flow Criteria Report determined that 60 percent of the unimpaired San Joaquin River 
inflow from February-June was necessary to preserve the attributes of a natural, variable 
system to which native species are adapted. It also pointed to the need for flows on all three 
major San Joaquin River tributaries that reflect a more natural frequency, duration, timing and 
rate of change to provide adequate conditions for spawning and rearing of juvenile salmon as 
well as for essential migration. Looking only at inflows to the Delta is insufficient. Instead, the 
report recognized the need for flow contributions upstream of the Delta from each tributary, 
and throughout the habitat range of key species, such as salmonids. 

Presently, the Bay-Delta Plan specifies a combined requirement for flow at a single point 
upstream of the southern Delta on the San Joaquin River below the confluence of the 
tributaries. There is no existing requirement for the flows in the major tributaries to sustain fish 
in the tributaries or to contribute to the flow at this compliance point. The draft update to the 
Bay-Delta Plan proposes to provide the necessary flow on all three tributaries, in dry years as 
well as wetter ones, to ensure suitable habitat and migratory pathways upstream of the Bay-
Delta to support native fish.  

The 2010 Delta Flow Criteria Report reviews the scientific basis for modifying flow regimes on 
the three tributaries, but it was not designed to look, nor did it look, at the effect that this 
increased level of unimpaired flow would have on other competing uses of water or the 
environment. The update of the Bay-Delta Plan includes this analysis in a comprehensive staff 
report, known as the Substitute Environmental Document (SED). The SED weighs 
recommendations for new salinity and flow standards with the costs, impacts, and benefits of 
the proposals. 

Proposed Change #1 – An Improved Approach to Setting Flow Objectives 
The State Water Board is updating and re-tooling its Bay-Delta Plan to better account for 
ecosystem needs and to better address the balancing of instream and consumptive human 
uses. Most notably, new flow objectives proposed for the San Joaquin River and its tributaries 
would enhance water flows upstream of the Delta to support the migratory and spawning 
habitat of native fish. 

As recommended in the Delta Flow Criteria Report, the new flow objectives would be based on 
percentages of unimpaired flows at locations on each tributary. Unimpaired flow is the rate and 
volume of water flow that would be produced by the rain and snow accumulating in a 
watershed absent any diversion, storage, or use of water. An unimpaired flow approach 
generally mimics the natural variability of California’s river flows that support native fish like 
salmon and steelhead and for which they have evolved.  

The proposal does not contemplate flow requirements equal to natural, pre-development 
conditions or even the 60 percent threshold identified in the Delta Flow Criteria Report. 
Instead, the draft proposes narrative and numeric flow objectives, expressed as a range from 30 
to 50% of unimpaired flow, for February through June for the Stanislaus, Tuolumne, and 
Merced Rivers through to the San Joaquin River near Vernalis.  



Summary of Proposed Updates to the Bay-Delta Water Quality Control Plan  
 

4 
 

The proposal recommends 
a 30 to 50 percent 
adaptive flow range, with 
a starting point of 40 
percent, because the 
State Water Board’s 
analysis shows that range 
will provide reasonable 
protection of fish and 
wildlife while moderating 
impacts to water supply 
for drinking water and 
agriculture. Historical 
median February–June 
flows from 1984–2009 in 

the Merced, Tuolumne, and Stanislaus Rivers were, respectively, 26, 21, and 40 percent of 
unimpaired flow. This means that flows in the tributaries were less than this amount half the 
time. Observed flows are far lower than unimpaired flows even in years of above normal 
unimpaired flow, like 2010. The Sacramento River, in contrast, already contributes to the Delta, 
on average, about 50 percent of Sacramento River unimpaired flow from April through June.  

Adaptive Management 
The unimpaired flow proposal does not require rigid adherence to a fixed percent of 
unimpaired flow, but can be thought of as a water budget. The draft proposes a block of water 
that can be “shaped” or shifted in time to best align instream flows with the needs of fish and 
wildlife throughout the year. As such, the flow proposal accommodates an adaptive 
implementation process that allows the magnitude and timing of flows to be adjusted, within a 
prescribed range, provided that such changes protect the fishery. Moreover, a key element of 
successful adaptive management is the implementation of non-flow measures that could 
reduce the flows needed, within the adaptive range, to achieve reasonable fish and wildlife 
protection goals, such as restoration of gravel spawning beds, suppression of habitat beneficial 
to predatory fish, and enhancement of habitat beneficial to native species. 

The proposal contemplates that biological goals (to assess improvements to fish resulting from 
flow and other actions) will be among the tools that inform future State Water Board decisions 
on whether to adjust the unimpaired flow percentage within the 30 to 50 percent range. Put 
another way, adaptive management will optimize the balance between fishery and human 
uses, while rewarding actual improvements in biological conditions that support native fish. 
Adaptive implementation of flows will also allow a nimble response to changing information 
and changing conditions while minimizing unintended impacts. 

What are the Ecosystem Benefits of the Flow Proposal? 

In most instances the proposed flow objectives will provide more instream flow than existing 
baseline conditions, restoring the pattern and some limited magnitude of flow to levels that are 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

M
o

n
th

ly
 A

ve
ra

ge
 F

lo
w

  
(T

h
o

u
sa

n
d

 a
cr

e
-f

e
e

t)
 

Month 

Monthly Average San Joaquin River Flow at 
Vernalis for Water Year 2010 

Unimpaired

Observed



Summary of Proposed Updates to the Bay-Delta Water Quality Control Plan  
 

5 
 

more closely aligned to the flow conditions to which native species adapted. Average annual 
instream flow between February and June would increase by 288 thousand acre feet (TAF), or 
26 percent, under the 40 percent unimpaired flow. The effects would be more pronounced at 
the 50 percent unimpaired flow level (485 TAF) and more attenuated at the 30 percent 
unimpaired flow level (174 TAF), with the biggest benefits in dry years.  

Nearly every feature of 
habitat that affects fish 
and other aquatic life is 
influenced by flow, 
including temperature, 
water chemistry, and 
physical habitat 
availability. These 
habitat features, in turn, 
affect the risk of disease 
and predation, 
reproductive success, 
growth, migration, 
feeding behavior, and 

other ecological factors that determine the viability of native fish. As discussed earlier, adding 
compliance locations on the tributaries helps ensure all these benefits for native fish extend 
further into the watersheds and along migratory routes. 

The State Water Board has quantified the effect of the flow proposal on key components of 
habitat to assess the ecosystem benefits of providing additional instream flow. The State Water 
Board’s analysis demonstrates that implementation of the flow proposal would significantly 
improve water temperature conditions conducive for salmonids, with the largest benefits 
occurring in dry years, particularly in the Tuolumne and Merced Rivers. With 40 percent of 
unimpaired flow, May salmon rearing temperature thresholds are met twice as frequently in 
critically dry years. Overall, temperature targets that are protective of salmonids are attained 
more frequently than under baseline for all life stages from February through June under 30, 40 
and 50 percent of unimpaired flow. 

Higher instream flows will also result in increased floodplain inundation. Floodplain inundation 
is important because it enhances the spawning and rearing success of salmonids. This is so 
because floodplain habitat provides abundant food and a safer environment for growing fish. 
The State Water Board’s analysis shows an overall 35 percent increase in floodplain inundation 
at 40 percent of unimpaired flow. 

There are many other benefits of a more natural flow regime during the springtime, including 
the reduced abundance of nonnative fishes and nonnative aquatic vegetation. Additionally, it is 
expected that large flow pulses during the spring will help juvenile salmonids migrate 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

Wet Above
Normal

Below
Normal

Dry Critically Dry

A
vg

. F
e

b
-J

u
n

e
 In

st
re

am
 F

lo
w

 (
TA

F)
 

Water Year-Type 

Average Three Tributary Instream Flow (Feb-June)  

Baseline

30% UF

40% UF

50% UF



Summary of Proposed Updates to the Bay-Delta Water Quality Control Plan  
 

6 
 

successfully to the Delta as a result of increased velocities, increased turbidity pulses, and 
increased volumes of water, all of which can reduce predation vulnerability. 

What are the Impacts of the Flow Proposal? 
The San Joaquin River Watershed does not produce enough water to both meet existing human 
demands and support a healthy ecosystem. Requiring more water to remain instream for the 
reasonable protection of fish and wildlife will reduce the quantity of surface water available for 
consumptive human uses, and will make water conservation and other tools like groundwater 
banking even more important than they already are, especially during drier years. The reduced 
water supply would primarily affect agriculture, but would also affect drinking water supplies 
and hydropower generation. 

Implementing the flow 
proposal is expected to 
result in a 7 to 23 percent 
reduction in water available 
for human consumptive use, 
depending on the flow 
within the 30-50 percent 
adaptive flow range. During 
wet years, there will be 
almost no impacts on 
diversions for human use 
because of the abundance 
of flow to share. The most significant impact on diversions for human use will occur in the 
driest years.  

As surface water availability declines, dependence on groundwater will grow, which in turn 
could cause or exacerbate groundwater overdraft. The State Water Board’s analysis indicates 
that implementing the 40 percent flow proposal could result in an average increase in 
groundwater pumping of 105 thousand acre feet per year (TAF/yr). Given that there is an 
existing 45 TAF/yr deficit in current groundwater supplies, the unmet agricultural water 
demand has the potential to increase by 137 TAF/yr to 182 TAF/yr in the plan area. Overall 
agricultural water supply deficits have the potential to increase over time as pumpers must 
come into compliance with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act. Water users can 
take many actions such as improved irrigation efficiency and enhanced groundwater recharge 
to reduce these water supply effects. While the SED does not require such mitigation at a 
programmatic level, it nonetheless identifies the actions that stakeholders can take that to 
address and lessen effects on groundwater supplies  

The potential negative effects on agricultural economic output increase with the volume of flow 
retained instream. A 40 percent of unimpaired flow requirement is projected to result in an 
average annual decrease in economic output of $64 million. This represents a 2.5 percent 
reduction from baseline annual average agricultural economic sector output of $2.6 billion. The 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

Wet Above
Normal

Below
Normal

Dry Critically
Dry

Th
o

u
sa

n
d

 A
cr

e
 F

e
e

t 
(T

A
F)

 
Water Supply Impact of 40% Unimpaired Flow Proposal 

by Water Year Type 

Water Supply  Availble at 40% UF Existing Water Supply Available

No Change 

38% Reduction 



Summary of Proposed Updates to the Bay-Delta Water Quality Control Plan  
 

7 
 

impact would be lower at 30 percent of unimpaired flow and higher at 50 percent.  Again, these 
impacts do not assume implementation of mitigation that water users would likely employ. 

Unless water users agree to voluntary reductions to implement an updated Bay-Delta Plan, the 
State Water Board would determine in subsequent regulatory proceedings the reductions 
necessary by specific water users to implement the updated Bay-Delta Plan. The effect of the 
flow proposal on specific individual water rights is unknown. In general, flow objectives that 
would be implemented through water right actions would follow the water right priority system 
and other legal requirements. 

Reducing Water Supply Impacts while Maintaining or Increasing Environmental Benefits 
Enhanced flows are the principal means proposed to implement the updated objectives. 
However, the proposal recognizes that throughout the watershed a number of other factors 
degrade conditions for native fish, such as non-native species, predation, high water 
temperatures, barriers to fish passage, and habitat loss. As a result, the proposal allows for and 
encourages the development of non-flow measures to complement the objectives. 
Implementation of additional non-flow measures that meet certain criteria can reduce the need 
for flows within the prescribed 30-50 percent range. 

The State Water Board recognizes that voluntary agreements can help inform and expedite 
implementation of water quality objectives and can provide durable solutions in the Delta 
watershed. In addition, the State Water Board believes that suitable voluntary agreements can 
provide reasonable protections for fish and wildlife and provide a faster and more durable 
implementation route if done correctly. As a result, the Board encourages stakeholders to work 
together to reach voluntary agreements incorporating a mix of flow and non-flow measures 
that meet or exceed the proposed objectives and protect fish and wildlife uses. 

The State Water Board will consider a voluntary agreement as part of its proceedings to 
implement the plan. In evaluating any proposal, the Board will consider whether the agreement 
will help achieve the water quality objectives, help protect the beneficial use, and be 
enforceable through Board action. The Board will also need to make any independent findings 
required by law in connection with the proceedings to implement the plan.  

Depending upon the strength of the voluntary agreement components and success in meeting 
the specified goals, the State Water Board could reduce the unimpaired flow requirement to as 
low as 30 percent. 

Proposed Change #2 – Updated Salinity Water Quality Objectives 
The proposal also includes a new salinity water quality objective for the southern Delta. The 
existing salinity objective was established at four southern Delta locations to protect 
agriculture. 

Analysis of southern Delta water quality and crop salinity requirements shows that existing 
salinity conditions in the southern Delta are suitable for all crops and that the existing April 
through August salinity objective is actually lower than what is needed to reasonably protect 



Summary of Proposed Updates to the Bay-Delta Water Quality Control Plan 

8 

agriculture. Accordingly, the State Water Board staff proposes to increase the southern Delta 
salinity objective to better reflect the current condition, which is sufficient to protect 
agriculture. The current salinity objectives are 0.7 deciSiemens per meter (dS/m) April through 
August and 1.0 dS/m September through March. The update proposes a year round objective of 
1.0 dS/m.  

While the proposal will update southern Delta salinity objectives, the Bureau of Reclamation’s 
water right permits would maintain existing salinity requirements at Vernalis in order to 
implement the proposed salinity objectives in the southern Delta, and maintain the current 
condition. Within the southern Delta, the proposal would specify channel segments as 
compliance points so that compliance with the salinity objectives can be monitored in a manner 
that better reflects the overall salinity levels and protection of the agricultural beneficial use. 

The SJR flow element of the proposal complements the southern Delta salinity element by 
augmenting flow in the southern delta, particularly in February through June. Increased flows 
under the flow alternatives would have the incidental benefit of flushing of salts early in the 
irrigation season, and providing better salinity conditions during Spring germination of crops, 
which is generally the most salt sensitive time. 

Next Steps 
To finish this part of the Bay-Delta update for San Joaquin River flows and salinity, the State 
Water Board must complete two key components – the finalization of the environmental 
documentation (SED) and the Bay-Delta Plan’s amendments. Comments on both the plan 
amendments and the SED are due on November 15, 2016, and a public hearing will be held on 
November 2 and November 10, 2016 in Sacramento, and November 4, 2016 in the Modesto 
area, to receive additional oral comments.  

Staff will prepare written responses to issues raised in the comments received during the 
written comment period and will respond in writing or orally to comments made during the 
public hearing. Staff will prepare a draft final SED for consideration by the State Water Board’s 
members. The Board members will consider the draft final SED before approving the project, 
and the SED will become final upon project approval. The Board will consider approving the 
proposed Bay-Delta Plan amendments at a public meeting that will be held in early 2017. 

Simultaneously, the State Water Board is moving forward with updating other elements of the 
Bay-Delta Plan. These other elements include update of flows on the Sacramento River and 
outflow from the Delta. A draft science report will be issued in a few weeks, followed by 
proposed updates in a process similar to what is being proposed for the San Joaquin. As noted 
elsewhere, the Board will allocate responsibility for meeting flow standards through water right 
proceedings separately. 



COLLABORATIVE APPROACH IS 
KEY TO CALIFORNIA’S FUTURE

California is facing a defining moment in water 
policy. A staff proposal under consideration by 
the State Water Resources Control Board presents 
a decision point about the future we want for 
California and its communities, farms, businesses 
and ecosystems. The State Water Board’s staff 
proposal to base new water quality objectives on 
a “percentage of unimpaired flow” would have 
impacts that ripple far beyond water for fish. 

The proposal could lead to widespread fallowing of 
agricultural land, undercut the state’s groundwater 
sustainability goals, cripple implementation of the 
Brown Administration’s California Water Action 
Plan, negatively affect water reliability for much of 
the state’s population and impact access to surface 
water for some disadvantaged communities that 
do not have safe drinking water. These effects are 
not in the public’s interest.

Local water managers overwhelmingly believe the 
proposal’s singular focus on “unimpaired flow” is 
the wrong choice for the state’s future. California’s 
urban and agricultural water managers are united 
in their vision for a future that includes a healthy 
economy as well as healthy ecosystems and fish 
populations. That vision is best achieved through 
comprehensive, collaborative approaches 
that include “functional” flows as well as non-
flow solutions that contribute real benefits to 
ecosystem recovery.

On behalf of its more than 430 member 
public agencies serving urban and agricultural 
customers throughout the state, the Association 
of California Water Agencies (ACWA) adopts the 
following policy statement regarding the State 
Water Board’s proposed approach to updating 
the Water Quality Control Plan for the San 
Francisco Bay/Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta. 

ACWA POLICY STATEMENT ON

MARCH 2017

BAY-DELTA FLOW 
REQUIREMENTS

(916) 441-4545 • www.acwa.com



CHOOSING OUR VISION FOR 
CALIFORNIA’S WATER FUTURE

Since 2009, state law has required water resources to 
be managed in a way that achieves the coequal goals 
of improving water supply reliability for California 
and protecting, restoring and enhancing the Delta 
ecosystem. ACWA and its public water agency members 
believe that policy requires a commitment from state 
agencies and stakeholders to advance both water 
supply and environmental goals together. ACWA and its 
members further believe that effective implementation 
of the coequal goals requires transparent, collaborative 
processes and comprehensive solutions.

In 2014, the Brown Administration released its California 
Water Action Plan outlining priority actions addressing 
water-use efficiency, groundwater sustainability, 
ecological restoration, Delta conveyance solutions, 
water storage, safe drinking water and more. Embedded 
in the plan is the Brown Administration’s commitment 
that planned actions “will move California toward more 
sustainable water management by providing a more 
reliable water supply for our farms and communities, 
restoring important wildlife habitat and species, and 
helping the state’s water systems and environment 
become more resilient.”

ACWA believes the policy of coequal goals and the 
commitment embedded in the California Water Action 
Plan have the potential to put California on a path that 
includes a vibrant agricultural and urban economy and a 
healthy ecosystem.

ACWA and its members believe the unimpaired 
flow approach proposed by State Water Board staff 
undercuts and threatens that potential and cannot lead 
us to the future we want for California. Simply put, any 
strategy that would result in vast amounts of agricultural 
land going out of production and ultimately reduce 
water supply reliability for the majority of Californians 
is irreconcilable with a policy of coequal goals and 
blatantly inconsistent with the water policy objectives of 
the Brown Administration.

ACWA strongly supports the collaborative approach 
called for by Governor Jerry Brown to move these 
important decisions out of adversarial processes and 
into negotiated, comprehensive agreements. The 
following principles can assure success in that endeavor.

LOCAL SUCCESS STORIES
Collaborative efforts have been 
successful on many rivers in the 
Bay-Delta watershed.

Lower Yuba River: A voluntary, 
collaborative settlement among 
Yuba County Water Agency, 
California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife, National Marine 
Fisheries Service, PG&E and 
conservation groups resolved 20 
years of controversy and resulted 
in a continuing program to 
improve 24 miles of salmon and 
steelhead habitat while protecting 
water rights and the needs of 
local communities. State Water 
Board members have specifically 
recognized the value of the 
agreement, which was formally 
implemented in 2008.

Lower American River: A 
broad representation of water 
suppliers, environmental groups, 
local governments and others 
negotiated an historic agreement 
that led to a flow management 
standard that was successfully 
incorporated into a 2009 
biological opinion issued by the 
National Marine Fisheries Service.

Feather River: Six years of 
negotiations among water 
users, fisheries agencies and 
environmental groups yielded a 
comprehensive agreement that 
includes a habitat improvement 
program with specific flow and 
temperature requirements to 
accommodate spawning salmon 
and steelhead. The State Water 
Board adopted the agreement, 
with some modification, in 2010 as 
a water quality certification under 
the federal Clean Water Act.



A BETTER PATH TO THE FUTURE

The State Water Board is responsible for updating 
the Bay-Delta Plan in a manner that establishes 
water quality objectives that ensure the reasonable 
protection of all beneficial uses of water (including 
domestic, municipal, agricultural and industrial 
supply; power generation; recreation; aesthetic 
enjoyment; navigation; and preservation and 
enhancement of fish, wildlife, and other aquatic 
resources) while considering past, present and 
probable future beneficial uses, environmental 
characteristics, water quality conditions and 
economic considerations, among other things. 
(See California Water Code Section 13241.) It also 
has a responsibility to update the plan in a way that 
is consistent with the coequal goals and respects 
and implements the commitments made in the 
California Water Action Plan.

ACWA and its members urge the State Water 
Board to set aside the unimpaired flow approach 
and heed Governor Brown’s call for negotiated 
agreements. ACWA believes that a successful 
flows policy must be consistent with the following 
principles: 

• Collaboration: The governor has called for 
work on a comprehensive agreement on 
environmental flows in both the San Joaquin 
and Sacramento River basins. He has asked 
that State Water Board members and staff 
prioritize analysis and implementation of 
voluntary agreements. Further, the Brown 
Administration committed in the California 
Water Action Plan that the State Water Board 
and the California Natural Resources Agency 
will work with stakeholders to encourage 
negotiated implementation of protective 
Delta standards. ACWA strongly supports 
the collaborative approach called for by the 
governor because it is the least contentious, 
most effective way to achieve the coequal 
goals. Negotiated agreements have been 
demonstrably successful at achieving 
outcomes and widespread support for 
appropriate environmental flows; forced 

 

regulations have not yielded the same track 
record. The State Water Board should wholly 
embrace this approach and allow enough time 
for it to work.

• Comprehensive Solutions: A successful 
collaborative approach will require 
comprehensive solutions for both water 
supply and ecosystem management. Water 
users will need to continue and build on 
their commitment to integrated resources 
management in order to maintain reliability 
without undue impacts on the ecosystem. 
Similarly, ecosystem managers will need 
to focus on the entire life cycle of affected 
species and multiple variables, such as 
predation, food, and habitat availability to 
develop integrated management portfolios 
that accomplish ecosystem goals without 
undue impacts on water supply. Utilizing the 
single variable proposed in the “percentage 
of unimpaired flow” approach will not achieve 
the desired ecological outcomes and is, by far, 
the most destructive policy approach from the 
perspective of protecting and improving water 
supply. ACWA firmly believes the ecological 
outcomes can be achieved with even better 
results through a comprehensive approach 
that considers multiple solutions and benefits. 

• Science: The State Water Board needs 
to incorporate the best available science 
to inform its work and assist with the 
development of voluntary settlement 
agreements. The unimpaired flow approach, 
in which flow objectives are not tied to 
any specific ecological outcome, fails to 
incorporate the best available science. As 
noted above, the updated plan needs to focus 
on the entire life cycle of affected species 
and multiple variables, such as predation, 
food, and habitat availability, and incorporate 
relevant current scientific information. Science 
alone cannot identify the best policy choice, 
but it can inform us about the policy tradeoffs 
we confront and help structure integrated 
solutions that provide ecosystem benefits with 
far less impact on water supply, the California 
economy and the public interest.  



• Functional Flows: Science shows that functional flows 
have very promising benefits for fish as well agricultural 
and urban water users. Timed and tailored for specific 
purposes, functional flows can benefit species in ways 
that unimpaired flow requirements cannot. Examples 
abound of collaborative, innovative projects currently 
underway by local water agencies and stakeholders 
that include functional flows and non-flow solutions 
that reconnect land and water to restore habitat and 
address the full life cycle of species needs. These 
efforts contribute real benefits to ecosystem recovery 
while maintaining water supply reliability. 

• Economic Considerations: The State Water Board 
has a statutory obligation to consider economic 
impacts when establishing water quality objectives 
that reasonably protect all beneficial uses of water. 
Having a robust economic analysis is critical. The 
board also has a policy obligation under the coequal 
goals to ensure its actions related to a revised Bay-
Delta Plan increase water supply reliability and 
thereby allow for a healthy, growing agricultural and 
urban economy in California. 

• Consistency with State Policy: ACWA urges the 
State Water Board to heed the governor’s direction 
and recognize that achieving the coequal goals will 
lead to a more reliable water supply and healthy 
ecosystem. Pursuing the coequal goals should be a 
guiding principle for the board’s decisions related to 
adopting a revised Bay-Delta Plan. The State Water 
Board also should ensure that its decisions on the 
Bay-Delta Plan enable, rather than obstruct, the 
implementation of the California Water Action Plan.

• Leadership: The best policy choice will come 
through the give and take of the negotiating process 
and the enlightened leadership of the State Water 
Board members. Ultimately, the board must establish 
water quality objectives that ensure the reasonable 
protection of all beneficial uses of water as it 
implements negotiated solutions. The State Water 
Board should actively engage in this work and lead 
in a manner that is grounded in an awareness of 
how its actions can affect the implementation of the 
California Water Action Plan and the achievement of 
the coequal goals.

ACWA and its members have taken a strong policy 
position in support of comprehensive solutions such as 
those outlined in the California Water Action Plan. We 
stand ready to work with the Brown Administration to 
pursue the collaborative and comprehensive approaches 
needed to ensure a future for California that includes a 
vibrant agricultural and urban economy and a healthy 
ecosystem.

FUNCTIONAL FLOWS:  
A BETTER APPROACH
Sacramento Valley: Sacramento Valley 
water users and conservation partners 
are working together to advance a new 
generation of innovative projects to 
promote salmon recovery.

Over the past two and a half years, 12 
projects have been completed through 
the Sacramento Valley Salmon Recovery 
Program to address fish passage, 
improve the timing of flows and increase 
habitat for salmon and other species. 
Priority projects have included removal 
of structural barriers to fish passage, 
modifying riffles, eliminating predator 
habitat, restoring floodplains and creating 
side channel spawning and rearing areas.

In addition, program partners are 
exploring creative ways to reconnect 
water with the land in floodplains and 
agricultural areas to enhance habitat 
and food production and create rearing 
habitat in rice fields.

While each of these collaborative 
projects provides independent 
value, implementation of the entire 
comprehensive suite is generating 
unique benefits that can significantly 
improve ecological outcomes for salmon 
in the Sacramento Valley.

Merced River: Merced Irrigation District 
has spent millions of dollars and decades 
undertaking intense and in-depth 
scientific research on the Merced River. 
This research has included analysis of 
flows, temperatures, biological resources 
and habitat. MID is poised to put this 
research into action through its Merced 
S.A.F.E. Plan (Salmon, Agriculture, Flows, 
and Environment) to provide certainty 
for both the environment and local water 
supply in Eastern Merced County.

The plan would provide increased flows 
using science to dictate the amounts 
and timing, restore critical sections of 
habitat for spawning and rearing juvenile 
salmon, protect local drinking water 
quality, upgrade an existing salmon 
hatchery with state-of-the-art facilities 
and reduce predation.

Based on in-depth science and 
technologically advanced computer 
modeling, MID seeks to take immediate 
action and dramatically benefit salmon 
on the Merced River.



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: April 5, 2017 April 12, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Eric Dunn, General Counsel 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.3 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
ON RESOLUTION NO. 17-14 BEING A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS OF THE PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT REQUIRING 
THAT BOARD MEMBERS BE ELECTED BY DIVISION STARTING IN 
NOVEMBER OF 2018 (PRESIDENT ALVARADO/DIRECTOR MAC 
LAREN) 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board consider adopting Resolution No. 17-14 requiring that 
Board Members be elected by division starting in November of 2018. 

Alternative Options: 

Take no action at this time. 

Impact of Taking No Action: 

Potential litigation under the California Voting Rights Act, as discussed further below. 

Background: 

The District currently holds at-large elections whereby all voters in the District vote for 
all candidates, but the Board Members must each reside in one of the five divisions.  This 
is known as a “from-division” system.  In a “by-division” system, Board candidates may 
only run for office within their division, and voters may vote only for candidates residing 
in their division. This is essentially the same as the district-based election recently 
adopted by the City of Palmdale, but without a mayor elected at large.   

I. THE CALIFORNIA VOTING RIGHTS ACT 

The CVRA was adopted in 2002 and expands on the Federal Voting Rights Act by 
making it easier for minority groups to challenge at-large electoral systems in the courts. 
“The legislative history of the CVRA indicates that the California Legislature wanted to 
provide a broader cause of action for vote dilution than was provided for by federal law.” 
Sanchez v. City of Modesto, 145 Cal. App. 4th 660, 669 (2006).  

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.3



2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT April 5, 2017 

The CVRA authorizes lawsuits challenging at-large elections for impairments of the 
ability of a protected class to influence the outcome of an election. (Elec. Code §14027.) 
A CVRA violation may be established by showing that racially polarized voting occurs in 
elections for the City Council. (§14028.)  Racially polarized voting may be determined 
by the extent to which “candidates who are members of a protected class and who are 
preferred by voters of the protected class, as determined by an analysis of voting 
behavior, have been elected to the governing body.” (§14028(a-b).) In other words, if a 
protected class consistently votes differently - as a group - than the rest of the electorate, 
a violation of the CVRA may be triggered. A judge has broad authority to implement 
appropriate remedies that are tailored to address specific CVRA violations. (§14029.) 
The most common remedy has been to order a municipality to switch from at-large 
elections to by-district elections. 

At least 142 school districts, 28 community college districts, and 53 cities have switched 
or are in the process of switching as a result of the CVRA as of this date. 

II. PROCEDURE TO SWITCH TO BY-DIVISION ELECTIONS

Pursuant to Elections Code Section 10508, amended effective January 1, 2017, a 
governing body of a district may require that the directors of the governing body be 
elected using district-based elections pursuant to Elections Code Section 10650.  For the 
Palmdale Water District, a “district-based” election means a “by-division” election. 

Under Elections Code Section 10650(a), also effective January 1, 2017, a governing body 
of a special district may require, by resolution, that the members of its governing body be 
elected using district-based elections, without being required to submit the resolution to 
the voters for approval.  The resolution must include a declaration that the change in the 
method of electing members is being made in furtherance of the purposes of the 
California Voting Rights Act. 

The attached resolution would require Board Members to be elected by division starting 
in November of 2018.  The attached resolution would authorize and direct the Board 
President, General Manager, and General Counsel to execute documents and take actions 
necessary to implement the change to by-division elections. 

Strategic Plan Initiative: 

None. 

Supporting Documents 

 Resolution No. 17-14



01184.0001/365350.2 - 1 - 

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 17-14 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT REQUIRING THAT 
BOARD MEMBERS BE ELECTED BY DIVISION 
STARTING IN NOVEMBER OF 2018  

WHEREAS, the Palmdale Water District is an irrigation district and is a state agency 
formed and existing for government purposes pursuant to Water Code section 20500 et. seq; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 16-19 and by Los Angeles County Board of 
Supervisors action taken April 4, 2017, the Board of Directors of the Palmdale Water District holds 
its general elections on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of each even-
numbered year; and  

WHEREAS, Palmdale Water District Board of Directors are currently elected from 
division and voted for at large; and 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the purposes of the California Voting Rights Act of 2001, 
the Palmdale Water District Board of Directors desires to change, by this Resolution, the method 
of election for members of its governing board from an at-large, from-division method of election 
to a by-division method of election; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Section 10650(a), effective January 1, 2017, the 
Board of Directors may by resolution change to a by-division method of election without 
submitting this Resolution to the voters for approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Palmdale 
Water District as follows: 

Section 1.  The above recitals are all true and correct and are hereby incorporated herein 
by reference and adopted as findings. 

Section 2.  The method of election for members of the governing board of the Palmdale 
Water District shall be by division starting with the election in November of 2018. 

Section 3.  The Board President, General Manager, and General Counsel are hereby 
authorized and directed to execute and submit documents to the the Los Angeles County Board of 
Supervisors and Registrar of Voters as necessary to carry out this Resolution. 

Section 4:  If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
resolution is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of the remaining portions of this 
resolution, it being expressly declared that this resolution and each section, subsection, paragraph, 
sentence, clause and phrase thereof would have been adopted, irrespective of the fact that one or 



 

01184.0001/365350.2  - 2 - 

more other section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase be declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors 
of Palmdale Water District held on April 12, 2017. 

 
 
 
    
Robert Alvarado, President  Joe Estes, Secretary 
Palmdale Water District  Palmdale Water District 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Eric Dunn 
General Counsel 



Hotel and Travel 
Accommodations

Event Name/Date:

CONTACT INFORMATION 

First Name Last Name Date

ACCOMMODATION INFORMATION 

Rooms and rates are subject to availability. Complete and submit this form as soon as possible to 
guarantee a room at the host hotel. In the event that the host hotel is booked, every effort will be 
made to secure a room at the closet hotel within comparable rates to the event discounted rate. 

Arrival Date Departure Date No. of guests Room Type

Do you require a smoking room?

Yes No

Do you need transportation from the airport to the hotel?

Yes No

Flight Number Time

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION/REQUESTS Staff Representative

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.4





2017 
AGENDA
OVERCOMING CHALLENGES THROUGH PUBLIC-PRIVATE 
PARTNERSHIPS

PRE-SUMMIT ACTIVITIES
Times and session topics are subject to change. 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 3, 2017 

1:15 PM – 4:30 PM
Site Tour - P3 in Action: A Tour of the Claude "Bud" Lewis Carlsbad 
Desalination Plant
Advanced Registration Required | Meet in Lobby of Manchester Grand Hyatt 
Hotel for Shuttle Pickup



Before the Summit kicks off, come see one of the largest public-private 
partnership water projects in California. 
 
We will host a limited number of P3 Water Summit attendees for a tour of the 50 
million gallon per day (56,000 acre-feet per year) desalination plant located 
adjacent to the Encina Power Station in nearby Carlsbad. Tour participants will 
get an up-close look at the facility and its operations, learn the history of the 
project, and hear about the 30-year water agreement finalized with the San Diego 
County Water Authority for the purchase of 50 million gallons per day of 
desalinated seawater. 

To reserve a spot contact sandra@thep3conference.com 

Sponsored by: 

 

 
 

6:00 PM – 8:00 PM 

Summit Check-In & Registration 



Grand Hall Foyer 
 

 

THURSDAY, MAY 4, 2017  

 

7:00 AM – 9:30 AM 

Summit Check-In & Registration 

Grand Hall Foyer 
 
 

8:00 AM – 9:30 AM 
P3 101 Breakfast (Open to Public Agency Attendees Only | Advanced 
Registration Required) 
Grand Ballroom A 
Join industry leaders and AIAI members for breakfast and an interactive 
conversation specifically tailored to the needs of water agencies that are 
evaluating P3s. This pre-Summit session is designed for those beginning to 
explore P3s and are seeking to better understand where they can be applicable. 
Learn about when P3s do and do not make sense to advance, what are the major 
considerations that need to be made when choosing this route, how can they can 
save money and time when dealing with system repairs and maintenance, and 
what are some of the first steps to make when considering the P3 route. 
 

Public attendees please confirm your attendance by emailing Lisa Buglione at 
LBuglione@aiai-infra.org  

 

  

FORMAL SUMMIT ACTIVITIES 

 

THURSDAY, MAY 4, 2017  

 

9:30 AM– 9:45 AM 
Summit Start: Welcome & Opening Remarks 
Grand Ballroom  
 
 

9:45 AM– 10:30 AM 



2017: A New Era for Water - What to Watch For  
Grand Ballroom D 
In our opening keynote Jill Jamieson will provide an overview of some of the 
most notable developments that shaped the public-private partnership landscape 
in the past year; and address some of the major political, policy, and project 
developments that are likely to define the U.S. P3 water experience in 2017. 
She'll address recent comments by the new administration regarding the role of 
partnerships for water infrastructure and speak to how P3s and other alternative 
delivery models are likely to be influencing major future projects being 
contemplated around the country. 
 
Presenter: 
Jill Jamieson, Managing Director, JLL Public Institutions Group 
 
 

10:30 AM– 12:00 PM 
Roundtable Discussions  
Grand Ballrooms A&B 

A series of interactive roundtable conversations on 16 different public-private 
partnership and water topics. Each conversation will last approximately 25 
minutes, and during the 90 minute session attendees will be able to participate in 
3 different discussions.  
 

Roundtable conversations are meant to be informal, candid exchanges where 
participants can ask their questions and concerns, share experiences, and network. 
Hosts will guide discussions by bringing up case studies, targeted issues, and 
topics impacting the current P3 landscape. 
 

Table 1: Cost of Finance – Does it Really Matter?  
This roundtable will discuss the relevance of the cost of financing when 
considering a P3. Some public officials disregard P3s outright arguing that tax 
exempt financing can be cheaper. In this discussion close consideration to when 
the cost of finance is relevant and other factors to consider in weighing the value 
for money of a P3 will be made.  
 

Table 2: Off Balance Sheet But on Credit  
Among the many touted benefits of potential P3 projects is the ability to keep 
debt off the balance sheet. But just because it’s off the balance sheet, do the 
rating agencies consider it to be off-credit as well? Chat with a ratings analyst 
who will discuss her approach to evaluating a P3 project’s impact on credit 
rating. 
 



Table 3: Making Partnerships Work  
When a P3 contract is signed with a private party, the work of the partnership 
begins, and both private and public parties have to live up to their responsibilities. 
Contracts attempt to identify and plan for the potential events that could occur 
during the life of the P3, but can rarely imagine all events into the future. This 
module will present the fundamentals and challenges of contract management, 
methods to streamline documentation. examine P3 contract requirements, discuss 
enforcement policies, as well as techniques for amending, renegotiating or 
terminating contracts. 
 

Table 4: Operational P3s: Lessons Learned Along the Way  
This table will address the best practices and lessons learned from active P3 
projects in both the construction and operation phases. The group will discuss 
how to drive innovation and value for money, finding the right risk transfer 
balance, ensuring a successful transition and what to expect for the next 30 years. 
The facilitator will also discuss key considerations in developing and 
implementing P3 projects including development of performance specifications, 
dispute resolution approaches, and risk allocation between the private and public 
partners. Join this table to discuss these issues, including some ideas to develop 
concepts that might work for your facility. 
 
Table 5: Lessons Learned from a Successful P3 Procurement, Structuring 
and Financing 

Learn how several water agencies approached their need for a plan by developing 
a P3 that met the city’s operational requirements within the city’s tight budgetary 
constraints and provided increased associated development of the downtown area. 
This discussion will cover important P3 procurement lessons learned including (i) 
the RFQ short listing process, (ii) the RFP process, (iii) political support during 
the procurement period despite a change in government, (iv) a review of 
alternative financial structuring elements and one-time subsidies to help meet the 
city’s budgetary limits, (v) importance of P3 risk allocation and the potential to 
trade those for lower perceived costs, and (vi) how the final taxable financing was 
cheaper than tax exempt structures that were explored (63-20, Lease Revenue 
Bonds, COPs, 501(3)c, etc). 
 

Table 6: Value Creation from Transferring Operations & Maintenance Risk 

One of the biggest differences in a P3 delivery is the long-term operations and 
maintenance obligations the private sector is responsible for delivering. Many 
public sector sponsors have stated that operations and maintenance services as 
one of the biggest reasons for considering a P3. Join a discussion on how the 
inclusion of operations in a P3 helps to build better buildings and improve service 
quality. 



 
Table 7: Using Tax-Exempt Bonds in P3  
For years tax-exempt financing has been the preferred means to finance public 
facilities. This roundtable will address the issues involved in using tax-exempt 
debt in public-private partnerships, and compare and contrast structures involving 
tax exempt debt vs conventional debt and equity. The conversation will also 
examine the impacts of the financing structure on project cost, project delivery, 
and long term operations and maintenance. 
 
Table 8: The Art & Science of Establishing Insurance Requirements  
A discussion to help understand the perspectives and desired balance to be 
achieved by both the Public and Private sectors in determining risk allocation and 
minimum insurance requirements. 
 
Table 9: Best Practices for P3 Procurement Success  
Are you considering a P3 delivery for your new municipal asset, but not sure 
where/how to start? Concerned about attracting private sector interest? This 
roundtable will address pre-RFP activities for a municipal entity to consider, a 
procurement road map to follow, and then steps to take to prepare and implement 
a P3 from procurement through award, commercial/financial close, delivery, and 
operations. 
 
Table 10: Developing a Successful Programmatic Approach to P3s and 
Innovative Project Bundling 

This roundtable will discuss the challenges faced by the public and private sector 
in their efforts to break into the P3 market and will address innovative practices 
for teaming and bundling projects for an economical and effective approach. 
 

Table 11: Defining and Maximizing Value in a Public-Private Partnership  
The deal structures of today are multivariable equations, not off-the-shelf deal 
structures that are bid on spec and valued exclusively by price. As such, the most 
successful projects are implemented when an institution defines project values, 
creates framework that prioritizes and normalizes variables, and drives 
competition by providing developers with sufficient information and flexibility to 
be innovative. This roundtable is designed to empower institutions to become the 
strongest owners possible by defining project requirements, weighing delivery 
options against risk, and selecting a development structure that best fits their 
goals prior to soliciting private partners.  
 

Table 12: From Idea to Implementation: The Role of a Project Champion in 
Building Internal Partnerships 

Between the idea for a P3 project and ribbon cutting lie many obstacles. P3 



projects are still new and different to many. They require new processes, new 
ways of thinking, new legal and financial models, and new risks. They change the 
politics of building on campus. A project champion is essential to navigate those 
obstacles and build a team and a process that will maximize the chances for 
success. The project champion must understand enough about both the traditional 
process for campus construction and the new opportunities offered by the P3 
model to bridge those worlds and to help the project adapt and remain flexible as 
campus needs change through the design and implementation phases. This 
roundtable is designed to empower potential project champions to build the 
internal partnerships needed to take a project from idea stage to implementation. 
 
Table 13: Owner Roles/Responsibilities in Executing a P3 

A discussion tailored to key problems, issues and hard learned lessons in major 
P3 procurement. Cancelled projects, contractor insolvency, defective buildings – 
it’s not all bad news but take the opportunity to avoid the mistakes of others 
around the globe. 
 
Table 14: Setting the Table for P3. Capturing Voices and Making Decisions 
in the First 60 Days 

The first 60 days of a P3 project can be intense. Many decisions must be made 
rapidly, not only about design and construction, but also about financing options, 
operational agreements and many other facets about which institutions might not 
have long standing protocol. Additionally, P3 processes typically result in a 
shuffling of roles and voices at the table. This discussion will explore several 
approaches to “setting the table” for a successful project. 
 
 

12:00 PM– 2:00 PM 
Networking Lunch 
Expo Hall 
 
 
1:00 PM– 1:45 PM 
Lunch Conversation: The Role of WIFIA - An Overview of the Program 
Grand Ballroom D 
The Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act of 2014 (WIFIA) 
established the WIFIA program, a federal credit program administered by EPA 
for eligible water and wastewater infrastructure projects. WIFIA and the WIFIA 
implementation rule outline the eligibility and other requirements for prospective 
borrowers. 
 
This session is designed prospective borrowers. WIFI representatives will provide 



an overview of the program and explain the process for submitting and evaluating 
WIFIA letters of interest. This conversation is meant to foster a greater 
understanding of the WIFIA program requirements; clarify the purpose and goals 
of the WIFIA program; and pave the way for successful applications to the 
program. 
 

Presenter: 
Jordan Dorfman, Advisor-Attorney, U.S. EPA 
 
 
2:00 PM – 3:00 PM 
Risk and Resiliency Under P3's 
Grand Ballroom A 
Water supply and compliance regulations are often combined in headlines. 
Municipal water system have suffered historically from underfunded system 
maintenance and capital upgrades. As such they have struggled to meet debt 
service liabilities and maintain compliance. Unable to raise adequate capital in 
the tax-exempt market, many utilities are now examining the public private 
partnership model. This session examines P3s as a solution for water supply, 
financial stability and compliance. P3s allow access to private finance, as well as 
operations and maintenance to meet a community’s needs. This panel of experts 
will explore the risks associated with providing safe and reliable water to 
residents. These risks include overcoming previous unfunded maintenance, 
differing site conditions, unknown environmental conditions, stabilizing existing 
workforce and financing variables. 
 
The panel will focus on several case studies including Rialto and Carlsbad. Public 
officials and private partners will share their lessons learned, issues and 
challenges, as well as how risk allocation allows them to address the solutions 
facing the community. This session explain the risks facing public procurement 
officials to implement programs to meet the growing water needs of industry and 
communities, and provides an overview of how P3s facilitate access to safe, 
reliable water resources. We will outline the risk drivers which serve to motivate 
the adoption of technology to address restoration of safe drinking water and 
distribution of potable water resources to meet the needs of residents and 
commercial and industrial partners.  
 

Moderator: 
Frank Rapoport, Partner, Peckar & Abramson 
 
Panelists: 
Rich Distler, Vice-President, Granite Constructions 



Greg Johnson, Partner, Squire Patton Boggs 
Tom Mulvihill, Managing Director and Head of Infrastructure Finance and 
Public-Private Partnerships - KeyBanc Capital Markets 
 
 

Water Design-Build Best Practices to P3 Delivery 
Grand Ballroom C  
The presentation and follow-on discussion, facilitated by the Water Design-Build 
Council, discusses the intersection of current design-build practices in the water 
and wastewater sector and how those practices should be adapted for P3 delivery. 
As some form collaborative delivery is inherently embedded in almost any P3 
approach, mastering the design-build learning curve is fundamental to 
successfully implementing P3 projects. The presentation portion of this session 
will focus on identifying key issues and risk transfer considerations unique to 
design-build delivery in the water and wastewater sector, followed by an 
interactive discussion focused on several key implementation issues, including: Is 
your organization prepared to implement a P3 project without prior hands-on 
design-build experience? How does the fixed price design-build approach 
translate to a P3 procurement, particularly in relation to prescriptive- versus 
performance-based requirements? Is there a progressive design-build option 
within the P3 framework? How do does the risk transfer and securitization of 
existing DBO models compare to typical P3 practice? How can commissioning 
approaches and Acceptance metrics for design-build and DBO projects be applied 
in a P3 environment? 
 

Panelists: 

Mark Alpert, Executive Director, Water Design Build Council 
Bryan Bedell, Water Division Leader, Haskell 
Leofwin Clark, Past WDBC President and Education Committee Chair, Brown 
and Caldwell 
 

A Template for Instilling Confidence in the Procurement Process 

Grand Ballroom D 

To attract the right P3 consortium partners (developers, investors, contractors and 
service professionals), the public sector must instill confidence in the 
procurement process and house the necessary expertise to support a pipeline of 
P3 projects. One way to do this is through a dedicated institutional framework 
designed to manage and guide programs and projects. This session explores best 
practices and new approaches to procurement in the context of public-private 
partnerships, and considers how pre-development agreements can evaluate risk 
transfer in design and construction costs, operational and maintenance challenges, 
and factors that can impact value for money analysis. 



Panelists: 

Bruce Allender, Associate Vice President, Black & Veatch 

Simon Baker, M.Sc, P.Eng, AECOM 

 
 

3:00 PM– 3:30 PM 
Networking Coffee Break 
Expo Hall 
 
 

3:30 PM– 4:30PM 

P3s for Rural Areas and Small Cities – How Can You Make the Model 
Work? 
Grand Ballroom A 
Join a panel of practitioners and industry experts who will explore how P3s can 
create opportunities for water resource development and sustainable water 
management in rural areas and small cities. This discussion will to address 
challenges to water safety and efficient distribution facilities at the local level. 
Local business leaders and municipal officials can learn how to develop a 
strategy for the development of supply and treatment facilities, including 
strategies and specific steps to take advantage of P3 best practices in public 
infrastructure procurement.  

Topics will include: 
• How do small and medium sized municipalities and rural communities ensure 
their water treatment systems are safe and built to handle dynamic and future 
growth? 
• What regional imperatives and market forces drive needs for safe and readily 
available water supply? 
• What compliance mandates drive funding or access to capital to help rural and 
modest scale urban or suburban systems keep pace? 
• How does technology play a role in providing communities with safe drinking 
water and efficient wastewater treatment? 
• How do local requirements affect procurements? 
• How do P3s address communities’ needs? 

 
Moderator: 
Bill Hvidt, The Hvidt Group 

Panelists: 
Michael Deane, Executive Director NAWC 
Don Hunt, Princiapl, Antero Group 
Bob Nespeca, VP Asset Management, PERC Water 



How Can the Traditional Engineering Industry Succeed in a P3 world?  
Grand Ballroom C 
P3 projects are often perceived as large and complex and they typically require a 
Developer to serve as an intermediary between an Owner and their traditional 
design consultant. As P3 projects gain acceptance in the water and wastewater 
sector, the relationship between Owners and their "trusted advisors" in 
engineering roles may be disrupted, for particularly smaller firms. This objective 
of this discussion is to explore how traditional mid- and small-size engineering 
firms can successfully participate in P3 delivery. From the perspective of an 
Owner, a Developer, and an Consultant, we'll address questions such as, "How 
can sound engineering practice be ensured in a monetized selection process" and 
"How can long-standing owner-consulting engineering relationships be 
maintained in a P3 delivery structure," and "How can a smaller firm hold their 
own in the midst of a Developer-led consortium?" 
 

Presenters 
Leofwin Clark, Vice President, Brown and Caldwell 
Adel Hagekhalil, Assistant Director - Sanitation at City of Los Angeles, City of 
Los Angeles 
 
 

P3s and Capital Program Solutions 

Grand Ballroom D 

What are financing options available to municipalities that can accelerate 
investment in much needed water infrastructure? This session brings together the 
perspectives of infrastructure banks, state revolving funds, and WIFIA 
representatives to discuss a range of familiar and lesser known programs 
available to communities evaluating water system investment. Panelists will share 
insight on the risks and advantages of different options, while considering key 
issues related to the application process; project selection; leveraging WIFIA with 
SRF resources; credit analysis; determining leverage; aggregating smaller 
projects;, the role of public private partnerships; hybrid funding, implementation, 
and proper stakeholder coordination. 
 

Moderator: 
Peter Luchetti, Managing Partner, Table Rock Capital 
 
Panelists: 
Kevin McDonald, WIFIA Credit Program, U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency 
John Medina, Vice President, Project and Infrastructure Finance, Moody's 
Investors Service 



Ian Parker, Managing Director, Goldman Sachs 
Nancee Trombly, Chief Deputy Executive Director, California Infrastructure and 
Economic Development Bank 
 

 
4:45 PM– 5:45 PM 

P3 Considerations in the Early Stages  
Grand Ballroom A 
The proposed panel discussion, in conjunction with the AIAI P3 Water 
Infrastructure Committee will cover a range of considerations that need to be 
taken into account during the early stages of a P3 project development. These will 
include assessing the feasibility of a project and what type of projects are best 
served by P3 delivery. A large consideration of P3 projects is determining where 
the funding will come from and how the project will be financed. What would 
attract the private sector to be engaged and be involved in the project? What are 
the benefits that would be achieved for the owner? In addition, the panel 
discussion will also highlight the merits and risks of P3 structures and how these 
played out in a selection of P3 Water projects to date; Prince George’s County 
and Carlsbad California. 
 

Moderator: 

Justin Ashford, Principal, WSP|Parsons Brinkerhoff  
 

Panelists: 

Greg Cannito, Managing Director, Corvias 

Eric Letsinger, Founder, Quantified Ventures 

Bar Littlefield, Chief Financial Officer, Poseidon Water 

Brian Rapp, Kiewit Infrastructure 
 

 
Small P3s: Innovative Solutions for Small Communities  
Grand Ballroom C 
Small and medium size communities as well as planned communities face 
increasing challenges to meet federal and state regulations. Are P3’s appropriate 
for small projects? This session will explore the tools and financing options 
available to community stakeholders to evaluate, plan and execute a successful 
P3 project. Whether upgrading an existing facility, building a new facility or 
planning for anticipated growth, establishing the right partners in advance is key 
to delivering a winning project and can make a small project become a big deal. 
 

Moderator:  
Mark Lambert, Managing Partner, WaterMark Resource Development 



 
Panelists: 
William Brennan, Managing Director & Co-Chief Investment Officer, Ultra 
Capital  
Matthew J. Diserio, President, Water Asset Management 
Frank Martinez, Long Beach Board of Water Commissioners 
 
 

5:45 PM – 7:00 PM 

Opening Night Welcome Reception 

Expo Hall  
Join us at this special evening networking event for all Summit attendees. Meet 
with speakers, exhibitors, and Summit delegates. 

Sponsored by: 

 

 

 

FRIDAY, MAY 5, 2017  

 

7:00 AM – 9:00 AM 
Networking Breakfast  
Expo Hall  
 

 
8:00 AM– 9:00 AM 

Strategic Solutions for Municipal Water Challenges 
Grand Ballroom A  
There is a wide spectrum of water challenges, and more often than not, it’s a 
delicate balance for communities to manage all the challenges. The good news is 
there are proven and effective resources to help them solve water challenges 
across the spectrum. Through public-private partnerships water companies have a 
solid resume of delivering strategic solutions to the water challenges facing 
municipalities. More than 2,000 water and wastewater facilities across the 
country depend on P3s to provide ready access to capital, expertise, technology 
and operational acumen. This session will navigate through the benefits afforded 



by the different P3 models and discuss the key components of successful water 
P3s currently underway in the U.S. Join a panel of industry participants as they 
discuss P3s in the context of the US water infrastructure market and cite 
examples of projects that illustrate successful P3 contracts.  
 

The Federal Perspective: A Conservation Across Agencies 
Grand Ballroom D 
A conversation with representatives from Federal Agencies focused on P3's. How 
are the USDA, EPA, Army Corp, and Department of Interior thinking 
approaching water partnerships in the Trump era? What sorts of P3's are likely to 
be encouraged? What are options for system managers? In this discussion 
panelist will discuss their agency's approach to P3's, where they perceive 
opportunities for the model, and share what's likely to change under the new 
administration. 
 
 
9:15 AM– 10:15 AM 

The Role of P3s in Water Resilience Projects 
Grand Ballroom D 
Climate resilience and water are inextricably linked. With increasing 
temperatures, evolving rain and snowfall patterns and changing demographics, 
resilience is moving to the top of many cities and regions agendas. Resilience 
projects encompass a diverse range of water related matters, from flood defense 
to drought resiliency, and municipal, state, and federal stakeholders. As the 
infrastructure need is becoming increasingly apparent, and as federal funds are 
ever more constrained, P3 is beginning to emerge as one possible way forward 
for these key projects. This section will draw on the lessons learned from a 
number of recent, high profile resilience projects to identify key issues, 
approaches and themes, which will be relevant to those contemplating similar 
projects, as well as those involved in structuring complex water related projects. 
Topics will include an overview of resilience infrastructure, and key drivers for 
action while considering major challenges faced by resilience projects. As well as 
the potential roles and limitations of P3 in resilience projects (value proposition, 
risk, pricing, design innovation etc.).  With key success factors considered from 
relevant experiences such as (i) SAWS; (ii) Fargo Moorhead; and (iii) New York 
City. 
 

Moderator: 
Stephen J. Auton-Smith, Managing Director, Ernst & Young Infrastructure 
Advisors LLC 
 



 
Panelists: 
Alan Gordon, Deputy Treasurer, Legislation and Infrastructure Financing, 
California State Treasurer's Office 
Francesca McCann, Business Development Director - InfraManagment Group, 
Black & Veatch 
Laurie Wayburn, Co-CEO and President, Pacific Forest Trust 
 
 

P3s for Emerging Sustainable Water Projects 
Grand Ballroom C 
As the regulatory environment has become more difficult and affordable water 
supplies more scarce, there is increased public interest in P3s for a variety of 
water supply projects that use emerging technologies, and which support local 
water sustainability. These projects can be constructed and maintained utilizing 
P3 vehicles and include advanced wastewater treatment facilities for 
indirect/direct potable reuse of highly treated recycled water, groundwater 
storage, replenishment and injection facilities, desalination of ocean and brackish 
water, and even P3 approaches for water/wastewater infrastructure maintenance. 
Are public-private partnerships (“P3s”) suitable for these types of projects? How 
do industry leaders from the public, private development, and finance sectors 
envision collaborating on sustainable water projects in the coming years? What 
are the hallmarks of successful (or unsuccessful) P3s in the water industry? Join 
our panel for a candid discussion about the pros and cons of P3 project delivery 
for sustainable and emerging water supply projects. 
 

Moderator: 
Justine Kastan, Senior Associate. Rutan & Tucker, LLP 

 
Panelists: 
Brian Adams, Senior Vice President, AECOM 
Brian Cullen, President, PERC Water Corp. 
Jeremy Jungreis, Partner, Rutan & Tucker, LLP 
Kim Thorner, General Manager, Olivenhain Water District 
 
 

Structuring and Financing Options for Water P3's 
Grand Ballroom D 
P3s have long been discussed as a potential solution to the underfunding of U.S. 
water infrastructure needs. In this session we will explore the various financing 
structures that have been successful for delivering water projects: comparing the 
various tax-exempt and taxable debt models, equity options and government 



programs. We will also discuss how P3 financing models are evolving and how a 
traditional project finance program compares to other P3 tools, such as 
concession agreements, that are more common in other sectors. Panelists we 
explore what can we expect regarding future market activity and what is the 
significance for both primary and secondary infrastructure markets? And delve 
into which P3 structure work best for a specific project or to meet the specific 
goals of an agency, examining specifically how each structure impacts the 
viability of the project, the return to the agency; and the municipalities credit 
profile and balance sheet.  
 

Panelists: 

Cherian George, Managing Director, Fitch Ratings 
Stephen Howard, Director, Barclays 
Andrew Prindle, Vice President, Goldman Sachs 
Jeffrey Murphy, Managing Director, Infrastructure Ullico Infrastructure 
Management Company 
Cecilio Velasco, Principal, KKR 
 
 

10:15 AM– 10:30 AM 
Networking Coffee Break 
Expo Hall 
 
 

10:30 AM– 11:30 AM 
What Makes the Water Sector So Unique and Why is it Important to 
Understand this in the Water P3 World? 
Grand Ballroom A 
The water sector has unique features that are central to the consideration of best 
practices in the evaluation, procurement, contracting and execution of a P3 
approach. Before a water sector P3 can be considered, it is important that these 
unique water-focused features are fully understood. Recognizing – and 
addressing – the challenges presented by these water-focused features will enable 
the integration of the P3 approach into the broad spectrum of delivery models 
available to the water sector. The application of best practices, continuity within 
the spectrum of delivery models, and recognition of water’s unique place in 
public infrastructure will provide the foundation for water and wastewater 
projects to grow commensurate with past performance in other sectors. The 
Moderators in this interactive session will recap major themes addressed at this 
year's summit. 
 



 
Topics to be discussed include: 
• Funding and Financing- what is the difference? 
• True cost of service dilemma and its role in a Water P3. 
• Financing and the Water P3 – is it necessary? 
• Impact of O&M to a Water P3– is the P3 model different than the DBO model? 
• Selection of the P3- it isn’t just the price tag. 
• Water sector is local and P3 could include more or less- which is better? 
• Asset life, performance variability, preventive and predictive care, turnover and 
other system needs that need to be recognized. 
 

Presenters: 

Leofwin Clark, Vice President, Brown and Caldwell 
Douglas Herbst, DBIA, Freese and Nichols, past President of DBIA SW Region, 
DBIA Water/Wastewater Liaison to DBIA P3 Committee 
 

Applying P3s to Stormwater 
Grand Ballroom C 
As owners of public storm drainage systems are aware the current generation of 
watershed-based stormwater permits (when including water quality standard-
linked compliance requirements) have the potential to cost billions. We will 
discuss how cities and counties are in need not only of technically sound 
solutions, but also funds for implementation, which are limited by myriad 
political and policy challenges (in California, Prop 218). 
 
Despite the recent rains, continuing drought conditions potentially face many 
areas of the country; and with population growth, resiliency and sustainability are 
critical long term needs. Stormwater (as well as recycled water) represent an 
option for providing low cost commodity of the water agencies. Administratively, 
however, in many areas different agencies are responsible for storm water 
quality, flood control, groundwater remediation, and water supply. 
 
Our panel will examine how performance-based requirements could include the 
development of new, environmental infrastructure, coupled with appropriate 
levels of operations, maintenance, and asset management. We will explore how 
Performance Based Infrastructure and P3s might provide opportunities to more 
holistically provide solutions that meet numerous technical, financial, risk, 
political and governance needs. 
 

Moderator: 

Ryan Baron, Regulatory Counsel, Best Best & Krieger LLP 
 



Panelists: 

Adel Hagekhalil, Assistant Director - Sanitation at City of Los Angeles, City of 
Los Angeles 

Cris Liban, Executive Officer, Metropolitan Transportation Authority 

Chad Praul, Environmental Incentives  
Ken Susilo, PE, CPSWQ, Geosyntec Consultants 

 
 
11:30 AM– 1:00 PM 
Networking Lunch 
Expo Hall 
 
 
1:00 PM– 2:00 PM 

Solutions for Small Projects: How to Structure P3s to Create Genuine Value 
for Projects Starting at $20 Million and Up 
Grand Ballroom A 
While large scale public-private partnership projects capture headlines, the 
majority of infrastructure opportunities fall into the $20 million -$100 million 
range. These smaller developments, while seldom spotlighted, represent the 
majority of all completed P3 for Social Infrastructure projects in the United 
States. Attendees will be introduced to a variety of successful P3 Water 
Infrastructure projects that have cost less than a $100 million. The presentation 
will address the key components that lead to cost savings on smaller scale P3 
projects and projects will be showcased to illustrate how smaller scale P3 projects 
can be built on-time, on or under budget and with a lower cost structure than if 
delivered through a conventional public delivery process. 
 

Using P3's for Safe and Secure Water Supply from Innovative Operational 
and Maintenance Practices 
Grand Ballroom C 
Water supply shortages and the challenges that American cities face due to aging 
infrastructure are impacting quality of life and safety. Many municipal water 
systems have suffered from historically underfunded system maintenance 
programs and inability to perform capital upgrades. Utilizing private financing 
through P3s Public private partnerships provide municipality’s an opportunity to 
provide communities with the safe water they require through innovative 
technology solutions and planned O&M.  
 
Join industry leaders both public and private as they discuss what role technology 
plays in the processing of potable water, ensuring that it remains safe, from its 



source to the tap. Learn from a review of world class examples of the impacts of 
technology on the: reconstruction of an existing plant; development of a new, 
innovative facility; and on-going operations, monitoring and maintenance of a 
state-of-the-art plant. Public officials who have entered into P3 agreements have 
found they create long-term value and cost savings for local residents by 
providing significant managerial and professional expertise in complying with 
environmental standards, implementing new technologies, and meeting staffing 
requirements. 
 

Moderator:  
Steven Paquette, President of U.S. Water and Environment Practice, 
WSP|Parsons Brinkerhoff 
 

Panelists: 

James Eklund Director Colorado Water Conservation Board 

Miriam Faigon, COO, IDE Assets, IDE Technologies 

Bill Malarkey, Senior Vice President, Severn Trent 
Michael Patella, Water Infrastructure and Resiliency Finance Center Office of 
Water, U.S. EPA 

Elliott Wheeler, P.E., CH2M 
 

The Intersection of Water and Power 
Grand Ballroom D 
Water and Power are closely linked. Energy is needed for the delivery of water, 
in particular in the case of desalinated water. Electricity generation uses water in 
particular as cooling water or requires water for the generation of electricity in 
particular in the case of hydroelectric power. Investments in drinking water 
infrastructure, wastewater treatment facilities and the need for upgrades to storm 
water infrastructure are posing challenges to local communities in the US as a 
significant portion of water and wastewater infrastructure approaches its first 
renewal cycle.  
 
This panel will explore the linkages between water and power, and examine the 
benefits and challenges of a more holistic approach: Can P3's be employed to 
drive energy efficiency and water usage benefit from a more holistic approach 
and private sector innovation? Some utilities in the US provide only water and/or 
sewer services, while others are multi-utilities that provide both water and power 
services. We will discuss the benefits and challenges of both approaches and the 
potential for greater regional cooperation in particular in areas with a growing 
population and those that face declining water use and a declining tax base.  Time 
will be spent analyzing the funding challenge: Both water and energy use are 
usually funded ultimately through rate payers. Is a lack of willingness to increase 



water rates driving low investments in water infrastructure? Can the water sector 
learn from the power sector?

2:00 PM– 3:00 PM
Overcoming Barriers to Advance Public-Private Partnerships 
Grand Ballroom D 
P3s are frequently touted as one of many strategic solutions to overcome the 
nation’s many water infrastructure challenges. Despite the numerous benefits of 
P3s, both municipalities and private water companies often face barriers in 
gaining public support for private sector involvement. A recent poll conducted by 
the National Association of Water Companies (NAWC) found that public 
perception of water being a “public good” and fear of negative voter reaction are 
significant factors impeding the use of P3s. This session will demystify P3s and 
address the barriers that can deter communities from pursuing a P3 as a potential 
solution to their water challenges. A panel comprised of both private and public 
sector representatives will share their respective experiences in overcoming 
public resistance to private participation in water projects.

P3 Questions and Answers Discussion Session - Where to go from Here 
Grand Ballroom C 
Join industry leaders and AIAI members for an interactive conversation 
specifically tailored to audience questions and answers about P3s. Attendees will 
have the opportunity to submit questions in advance and also join in the 
discussion of the benefits, values, and applications of P3s in an open dialogue. 

3:00pm
Summit Ends



HOTEL INFO
EXPLORING THE APPLICATION OF PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS

The beautiful Manchester Grand Hyatt San Diego Hotel is our event headquarters. A block of 
rooms are being held at the hotel at a special rate of $229. Reservations must be made by April 16, 
2017 or before the block is sold out in order to guarantee this rate. Reservations made after this 
date can only be honored on a space and rate available basis.  

To make your hotel reservations, please click here
(https://aws.passkey.com/event/16374103/owner/414/landing) or call the hotel directly at (619) 
232-1234 and identify yourself as part of The P3 Water Summit

Getting There

The Manchester Grand Hyatt San Diego is located at 1 Market Pl, San Diego, CA 92101.

One major airport serves the San Diego area and is convenient for staying at Manchester Grand 
Hyatt Hotel:
San Diego  International Airport (http://www.san.org/) (DFW) – which is just 3 miles away.

For information or special pickup arrangements with the Manchester Grand Hyatt Hotel, please 
can contact the hotel at (619) 232-1234

Page 1 of 2The P3 Water Summit - A P3C Event

4/5/2017https://events.bizzabo.com/202615/page/1273697/hotel-info



STAFF CONFERENCE/SEMINAR REPORT FORM 

NAME:       DATE: 
POSITION:  

CONFERENCE SUMMARY: 

• TITLE:

• ORGANIZATION:

• LOCATION AND DATES:

• GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER:

SESSION/CLASS ATTENDANCE: CONTACT HOURS 
(HRS): N/A 

KEY POINTS/BENEFITS RELATING TO WORKGROUP, DEPARTMENT AND/OR 
OVERALL OPERATIONS: 

REVIEWED BY: 

SUPERVISOR: DATE: 

DEPARTMENT MANAGER: DATE: 

1

2

3

4

5

FORM REVISED 10-23-13



Hotel and Travel 
Accommodations

Event Name/Date:

CONTACT INFORMATION

First Name Last Name Date

ACCOMMODATION INFORMATION

Rooms and rates are subject to availability. Complete and submit this form as soon as possible to 
guarantee a room at the host hotel. In the event that the host hotel is booked, every effort will be 
made to secure a room at the closet hotel within comparable rates to the event discounted rate. 

Arrival Date Departure Date No. of guests Room Type

Do you require a smoking room?

Yes No

Do you need transportation from the airport to the hotel?

Yes No

Flight Number Time

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION/REQUESTS Staff Representative

ESRI User Conference, July 10 - 14, 2017, San Diego













STAFF CONFERENCE/SEMINAR REPORT FORM 

NAME:       DATE: 
POSITION:  

CONFERENCE SUMMARY: 

• TITLE:

• ORGANIZATION:

• LOCATION AND DATES:

• GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER:

SESSION/CLASS ATTENDANCE: CONTACT HOURS 
(HRS): N/A 

KEY POINTS/BENEFITS RELATING TO WORKGROUP, DEPARTMENT AND/OR 
OVERALL OPERATIONS: 

REVIEWED BY: 

SUPERVISOR: DATE: 

DEPARTMENT MANAGER: DATE: 

1

2

3

4

5

FORM REVISED 10-23-13



Hotel and Travel 
Accommodations

Event Name/Date:

CONTACT INFORMATION

First Name Last Name Date

ACCOMMODATION INFORMATION

Rooms and rates are subject to availability. Complete and submit this form as soon as possible to 
guarantee a room at the host hotel. In the event that the host hotel is booked, every effort will be 
made to secure a room at the closet hotel within comparable rates to the event discounted rate. 

Arrival Date Departure Date No. of guests Room Type

Do you require a smoking room?

Yes No

Do you need transportation from the airport to the hotel?

Yes No

Flight Number Time

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION/REQUESTS Staff Representative

11th IWA International Conference on Water Reclamation & Reuse, 7-23-27-2017, Long Beach

































STAFF CONFERENCE/SEMINAR REPORT FORM 

NAME:       DATE: 
POSITION:  

CONFERENCE SUMMARY: 

• TITLE:

• ORGANIZATION:

• LOCATION AND DATES:

• GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER:

SESSION/CLASS ATTENDANCE: CONTACT HOURS 
(HRS): N/A 

KEY POINTS/BENEFITS RELATING TO WORKGROUP, DEPARTMENT AND/OR 
OVERALL OPERATIONS: 

REVIEWED BY: 

SUPERVISOR: DATE: 

DEPARTMENT MANAGER: DATE: 

1

2

3

4

5

FORM REVISED 10-23-13



AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.1


























	AgendaRegular4-12-17
	Item5.1
	Item6.1
	Item6.2
	Item6.3
	Item7.1
	Item7.2
	Item7.3
	Item7.4
	Item8.1

	Column1_E5CCc2JOU4K6mYc2L0UW5g: P3 Water Summit, May 4 - 5, 2017, San Diego
	First Name_dyoZTsSYj7AaZZORUqwHRg: 
	Last Name_wtE2EKuY4zimhkLHVtbImQ: 
	Date_6p6LNlgfSG2*iJ6ZkX0Lew: 
	Arrival Date_Jy6nv5X38KS1lyDYw-*uAQ: 
	Departure Date_uFmnQc6dxs4jn7s*g32RAA: 
	No_ of guests_eawk6KfUKuOVtwwqYtRuSw: 
	Room Type_3d9hSKz5JxmaE1lMDcG94w: []
	Do you require a smoking room?_T1xLc-mhfPXMrB8uElQlZw: Off
	Do you need transportation fro_3AGDkttQrvzy2tH4-0DfYA: Off
	Flight Number_zY9NGizqNvliyJFB0IEmxA: 
	Time_N18PoY40LFC6LCUUBXb4JA: 
	ADDITIONAL INFORMATION/REQUEST_0MGHwGHCfZmli5zV6WpKPA: 
	Staff Representative_0oojaa2pjuMFTNuQ7HxulA: 
	fc-int01-generateAppearances: 
	STAFF CONFERENCESEMINAR REPORT FORM: 
	undefined: 
	DATE: 
	CONFERENCE SUMMARY: 
	undefined_2: 
	ORGANIZATION: 
	undefined_3: 
	LOCATION AND DATES: 
	undefined_4: 
	GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER: 
	1: 
	2: 
	undefined_5: 
	undefined_6: 
	undefined_7: 
	undefined_8: 
	undefined_9: 
	undefined_10: 
	undefined_11: 
	undefined_12: 
	undefined_13: 
	undefined_14: 
	OVERALL OPERATIONS 1: 
	OVERALL OPERATIONS 2: 
	OVERALL OPERATIONS 3: 
	OVERALL OPERATIONS 4: 
	OVERALL OPERATIONS 5: 
	OVERALL OPERATIONS 6: 
	OVERALL OPERATIONS 7: 
	OVERALL OPERATIONS 8: 
	OVERALL OPERATIONS 9: 
	REVIEWED BY: 
	DATE_2: 
	DEPARTMENT MANAGER: 
	DATE_3: 
	1_2: 
	2_2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 


